/ | T—

ANEERRIIN

« \/
N qﬁ 08040912

o

4 \ ///
HEALTHGRADES 7w

GUIDING AMERICA TO BETTER HEALTHCARETM

PROCESSED

W3

THOMSON
FINANCIAL

2005 Annual Report to Stockholders




Dear Stockholder: :

2005 was a strong year for HealthGrades as we Sighiﬁcantiy increased both revenue and profitability while
also expanding our product lines and continuing to make investments for additional growth opportunities.
We also made significant strides in enhancirig HealthGrades’ brand presence. As evidence of our enhanced
brand presence, we increased our website traffic durihg 2005 by 112%, to over 26,000,000 unique users. -
Additionally, several key stfategic hires strengthened-our leadership and sales teams and we listed our
common stock on the NASDAQ small cap market. Finally, we expandéd our investor base as
HealthGrades’ long-time in{festor, Essex Woodlands Héalth Ventuf'es 1V, L.P., sold all of their
HealthGrades’ common shaires to several institutionai investors in two Separéte transaétions at the end of
2005 and early 2006. I would like to personally welcome our new stockholders and thank Essex '

v \ ' ‘
Woodlands for their support over the last several years.

¢
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Financial Results

Our financial growth continued in 2005, as revenues rose to $20.8 million, a 43% increase over 2004 and
~our operating margin increased to 19%, representing a:1 58% increase over 2004. We generated
approximately $6.6 million in cash flows from operating activities aﬁa our operating income increased
from $1.8 million to $3.9 million. As an additional reflection of our firiancial success during 2005, our
application with NASDAQ for listing HealthGrades’ common stock was accepted and our common stock

began trading on the NASDAQ ‘SmallCap Market in June 2005.

Our Products and Services B

The sales of our marketing services to hospitals continue to represent the majority of our revenues. For
2008, sales for our marketing services to hospitals repie'éented 59% of our revenues, down slightly from
60% in 2004, However, during 2005 and ;ontinﬁing into 2006, we have invested in the success of
additional product lines. This investment is reflected 1'n the increase of our sales of quality information to
employers, consumers and 6thers, which increased by 63% ciuring 2005. Sfrong growth in our direct sales
of Quéiity TEpOrts to consumers via our website was a i)rinéipal reason for the increasé in sales of our
quality information. While we are proud of these results, we remain more excited than ever with respect to
thé opportunities we see for our future. HealthGrades‘tis ina l'mi.que positioh in that we have an established
business and brand in our marketing services programs, which performs extremely well year-over-year, as
well as additional areas we have invested in that we anticipate will help drive our company’s continued

growth in 2006 and beyond.




One of our investments has been, and continues to be, in our recently launched Patient to Provider
Gateway™ product, through which we seek to connect patients or consumers with the right provider at the
right time. Through our Patient to Provider Gateway program, hospitals and physicians can sponsor
HealthGrades’ profiles so that the nearly 3,000,000 consumers searching the healthgrades.com website for
healthcare information can, at no cost to them, obteirr accese to quality information on physicians. In May
2006, we announced our first system-wide hospital contract with Tenet for this product. We believe that

this significant contract will help drive adoption of this new product.

In addition, we enhanced our leadership and sales teams with respect to our Strategic Health Solutions
business toward the end of 2005. This group sells our quality ratings suite of products into employers,
benefit consultants and health plans. The sales cyciee for these products tend to be long, from nine to
twelve months, but we are excited about our positioning in this area. As employers and employees
continue to bear a larger portion of the healthcare spend, we believe they will continue to look for tools and
information to help them make informed healthcare decisions. Our informatron and products are designed
to provide reliable, actionable data regarding quality and cost which we believe are necessary when making

informed healthcare decisions.

We believe that the mvestments we have made and contlnue to make in areas outsrde of our marketing
services programs help position HealthGrades for continued success. While our previous success has been
driven principally by the marketing services programs, as we look forward we anticipate that we will see
continued expansion not only with respect to those programs, but in some of our developing product areas
as well. Maintaining our focus on success in these other areas is an important strategy to driving significant

Tevenue expansion in subsequent years.

Revenue Reporting

As we recently announced, beginning in 2006, we are providing revenue information,witu respect to three
broad business areas: Provider Services, Internet Businese_ Group and Strategic Health Solutions. Our
Provider Services revenue will include sales from our hospital marketing and quality improvement
products, as uvell as revenue from our cousultant—reimbursed travel. Our Internet Business Group will
include the sale of our quality reports to consumers, revenue from our Patient to Provrder Gateway product
and any websne advertising and sponsorship revenue. Finally, our Strategic Health Solutions revenue w111
include the sale of our quality 1nformat10n to employers beneﬁt consultants, health plans and others as well

as any sales of our underlying data.




As with any growth company, there may be variability in short-term results and we expect our 2006
revenue growth and operating margins to be higher inllthe second half of this year compared to the first half
as the company corntinues toinvest in a number of strategic initiatives, including, among other things, new
product development and the redesign of current employer applications.

Summary

We are pleased with our results in 2005, as we saw, once again, substantial growth in revenues and
operating margins. We have achieved this while inveéting in, and maintaining a focus on, our company’s
future. We continue to build the foundation for a business that will expand for years to come.
HealthGrades has always been, and continues to be, managed with a long-term view, constantly focusing

on how we can maintain what we believe to be a market-leading position in a unique space.

We remain excited about our current positioning and outlook for a long and bright future and thank all of
our investors, both new to the HealthGrades story and those that have been following us for some time, for

their support. |
Sincerely,

—n

Kerry R. Hicks

Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer
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I'his Report contains forward lookmg statements that address; among other things, the availability of healthcare data, expected 2006
ncome tax rate and growth in new sales. These statements-may be found under “Item 1-Business,” “Item 1A-Risk Factors,” and

‘Ttem 7-Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” as well as in this Report generally.
~e generally identify forward-looking statements in this report using words like “believe,” “intend,” “expect,” “may,” “will,”
‘should,” “plan,” “project,” “contemplate,” “anticipate” or similar statements. Actual events or results may differ materially from
hose discussed in forward-looking statements as a result of various factors, including: unanticipated change in our valuation
:llowance or slower than anticipated growth in new sales. In addition, other factors that could cause actual events or results to differ
naterially from those discussed in the forward looking statements are addressed in “Risk Factors” in Item 1A and matters set forth in
he Report generally. We undertake no obligation to update publicly any forward-looking statements.
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PART I
tem 1. Business.,
BUSINESS

Jverview :

Health Grades, Inc. (“HealthGrades”) provides proprietary, objective ratings of hospitals, nursing homes and home health
igencies. We also prov1de detailed information on physicians, including name, address, phone number, years in practice, information
m whether they are board certified, whether they are free of state and federal sanctions and many other items. We provide our clients
vith healthcare information, including 1nf0rmat10n relating to quahty of service and detailed profile information on physicians, that
:nables them to measure, assess, enhance and market healthcare qualxty Our clients include hospitals, employers, benefits consultmg
irms, payexs insurance companies and consurmers.

i
s

On our website at www. healthﬂrades com, we currently prov1de ratings or pmﬁle information relatlng to the following healthcare
woviders:

3
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e  Over 5,000 hospitals with risk- adjusted ratings on 29 medical “issues” (which we define below) and programmatic
ratings for maternity care and women’s health (as further described below). For 27 medical issues, the risk adjustment
was based upon our methodology. For Gastrointestinal Procedures and Surgeries and Respiratory Failure, the risk
adjustment was based upon the APR-DRG methodology developed by 3M Corporation. APR-DRG is an acronym for
All Patient Refined Diagnosis Related Group. The APR-DRG methodology is a w1de1y used severity-of-illness and risk
of mortality adJustment tool.

e  Over 620,000 physicians in over 120 specialties; and.
e  Over 16,000 nursing homes.

We offer services to hospitals that are either attempting to communicate their clinical excellence to their internal staff, consumers,
and physicians or are working to improve quality. For-hospitals that have received high ratings, we offer the opportunity to license our
ratings and trademarks and provide assistance in their marketing programs at an institutional level (e.g., hospital clinical excellence
and exceptional experience regarding the overall number and type of patient safety incidents within a hospital) at a service line level
(e.g. cardiac, pulmonary, vascular, etc.) and at a medical issue level (e.g., within the cardiac service line-coronary bypass surgery,
heart attack, heart failure, etc.). We also offer physician-led quality improvement- engagements and other quality improvement
analysis and services for any hospltals that are seeking to understand why they have quality issues compared to other, higher-rated
hospitals and how they can improve quality.

In addition, we provide basic and detailed profile information on a variety of providers and facilities. We make this information
available to consumers, employers, bénefits consulting firms and payers to ‘assist them in selecting healthcare providers. Basic profile
information for certain providers is available free of charge on our website, www.healthgrades.com. For a fee, we offer healthcare
quality reports with respect to hospitals, nursing homes and physicians. These reports provide more detailed information than is
available free of charge on our website. Report pricing and content varies based upon the type of provider and whether the user is a
consumer or a healthcare professional (for example, a medical professional underwriter).

We also provide detailed online healthcare quality information for employers, benefits consulting firms, payers and other
organizations that license our Quality Ratings Suite™ of products — Hospital Quality Guide™, Physician Quality Guide™, Nursing
Home Quality Guide™ and Home Health Quality Guide®: This information can be customized so that, for example, an employee
can be provided with online access to quahty data relatlng t0. healthcare providers withinithe prov1der network avallable under the
employee’s health plan. - . ‘ :

Recent Developments i o : I : .
See Item 3. Legal Proceedings, Demand for Arbltratlon = Agreement with, HeW1tt Assomates LLC for information regardlng a

demand for arbitration we filed before the Amemcan Arbltratlon Association.against Hewitt Associates LLC.

-

Healthcare Prov:der Quality Informatlon

We compile comprehensive information regarding various healthcare providers and distill the information to meet the
requirements of consumers, employers, payers and other customers. While we provide certain information without charge on our
website, we charge users for more detailed information. Our revenues are generated, in part, through the provision of healthcare
information derived from our databases in a manner that can be useful to consumers, employers, benefits consulting firms, payers and

others.

The www.healthgrades.com website is a healthcare information website that provides rating and other profile information
regarding a variety of providers and facilities. Our goal is to provide healthcare information that enables consumers to locate the right;
provider at their time of need. '

Hospital Speczalty and Programmatzc Ratmgs = We currently prov1de risk-adjusted hospital quality ratings for 29 medical issues.

For 27 medical issues, including, among. others, coronary bypass surgery, acute myocardial infarction (heart attack), stroke, total knee
or hlp replacement and back and neck surgery, the risk adjustment is based upon our methodology. For Gastrointestinal Procedures
and Surgenes and Respiratory Failure, the risk adjustment is based upon methodology developed by 3M Corporation. In addition,
users can compare hospltals utilizing our programmatic ratings for matermty care and women’s health. We have termed’ these
“programmatic ratings” because our maternity care ratings and our women’s health ratings, which include our maternity care ratings,
are based in part upon the presence or absence in a hospital’s maternity care program, of spec1ﬁed attributes, described below, and not




solely on mortality or complication rates at a discrete medical issue level as'our other ratings are: Our programmatic ratings are
currently available in 17 states that provide us with all-payer data, as further-described below. In general, all ratings are updated each
fall, except for our programmatic ratings, which typlcally are updated every sprmgr
|

For each particular medical issue chosen by the user, other than those relatmg to matemxty care and women’s health, we provide a
rating system of five stars, three stars or one star (five stars is the highest rating; one star is the lowest) for virtually every hospital in
the United States. We base all of our ratings, except ratings on maternity care and women’s health, on three years of MedPAR
(Medicare Provider Analysis and Review) data that we purchase from the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (formerly the -
Health Care Financing Administration), known as CMS. The MedPAR database contains the inpatient records of all Medicare
patients. We apply proprietary algorithms to the MedPAR data to account for variations in risk in order to make the data comparable
from hospital to hospital. In the initial analysis of the data, a separate data set is created for each group of patients having a specific
procedure or diagnosis (e.g., coronary bypass surgery, total hip replacement), based on ICD-9-CM coding. The ICD-9-CM
(International Classification of Diseases, Clinical Modification) is the widely. adopted system of assigning codes to diagnoses and
procedures associated with hospital utilization in the United States.. The ICD-9-CM is used to code and classify mortality data from
death certificates. Each group of patients is defined by using the information on diagnoses and procedures coded in the patient
records. The quality measure for some procedures or dlagnoses is mortality, while the quality measure for others is major
complications. : \ ‘ ‘ :

+ Generally, approximately 75% to 80% of hospitals studied are classified as three stars. The three star rating is applied when there
is no difference, statistically speaking, between a hospital's predicted and actual performance. Approximately 10% to-15% of hospitals
are rated five stars, which means that their performance is statistically better than expected. Approximately 10% to 15% of hospitals
are rated one star, meaning that their performance was stat1stlca11y worse than expected

For our maternity care ratings, wh1ch also are subject to the ﬁve star ratmg system, we use state all -payer files from 17 1nd1v1dual
states derived from the inpatient records of persons who utilize hospitals in those states. The 17 states represented on the site are:
Arizona, California, Florida, Jowa, Maine, Maryland, Massachusetts, Nevada, New Jersey, New York, North Carolina, Pennsylvania,
Texas, Utah, Virginia, Washington,-and Wisconsin. This data represents all discharges for the 17 states over a three-year period set
from 2001-2003. We analyzed several factors, such as volume of vaginal and cesarean delivery complications, for each hospital within
the 17 all-payer states. We then developed a system that-assigned‘a weight to each factor based on its i‘mportance to the quality of
maternity care. Based upon the application of this system, the top.15% of hospw itals (in the- 17 states) receive five stars, the middle
70% receive three stars and the bottom 15% receive one star. : :

For the women’s health ratings, which are also subJect to the five star rating system, we use state all-payer files from the same 17
individual states referenced for our obstetrics ratings.” These ratings are based upon' outcomes in maternity care services and
cardiac/stroke mortality outcomes for women. The top 15% of hospitals (in the 17 states) receive five stars, the middle 70% receive
three stars and the bottom 15% receive one 'star. ‘

Institutional and Service Line Hospital Awards - We recognize exceptional quality outcomes at an institutional level (e.g. hospital
clinical excellence and patient safety) as well as at service line level. Hospitals that achieve distinction from us for their exceptional
quality outcomes receive our Distinguished Hospital Award for Clinical Excellence™ (DHA-CE). This is an annual distinction that is
iypically announced at the beginning of each calendar year. For our'2006 award year, we segregated hospitals between teaching, non-
ieaching and community hospitals. Community hospitals were defined as non-tzaching hospitals with fewer than 200 beds. For a
hospital to be considered for the DHA-CE,. a hospital was required fo have an average overall star rating of at least 3.3 and inhospital
mortality or major complication rating in at least 21 of the 28 medical issues that we rate using MedPAR data. The top twenty percent
of hospitals that met this criteria, ranked in descending order by their average. star rating derived from averaging all of their
HealthGrades’ ratings, from each of the groups (teaching, non-teaching and community) were awarded the DHA-CE designation.

t ’ ‘ ‘
Nationwide, 277 hospitals received the DHA-CE designation in 2006.

Hospitals that achieve distinction from us for their exceptional patient safety performance receive our annual Distinguished
Hospital Award for Patient Safety™ (DHA-PS). This distinction is based on thirteen of the Agency for Healthcare Research and
Quality’s (AHRQ) Patient Safety Indicators (PSI's) (including, among others, post-operative hip fracture, post-operative hemorrhage
or hematoma and post-operative sepsis) and recognizes exceptional experience regarding the number and type of patient safety
mcidents within a hospital. We utilized the PSI software developed by AHRQ to determine the patient safety rates for each individual
»SI. We then created an overall patient safety score for every hospital utilizing the PSI sofiware developed by AHRQ. For our 2005
award year, we segregated hospitals between teaching and non-teaching. In order to achieve distinction, hospitals had to have an
average overall HealthGrades star rating of at least 2.5 and have a-HealthGrades star rating in a minimum number of 20 of the 28




.medical issues we rate using MedPAR data. The top ten percent of the hospitals that met these criteria, ranked in descending order b
their average overall patient safety score, from each of the groups (teaching and non-teaching) were awarded the DHA-PS designation

In 20035, recipients of the DHP-PS were in the top 3% of all hospitals evaluated.
Nationwide, 71 teaching hospitals and 64 non-teaching hospitals received the DHA-PS designation in 2005.

In January 2005 we released our first annual Specialty Excellence Awards™. Hospitals with specialty practices in cardiac
orthopedic, vascular, pulmonary, stroke, gastromtestmal care or critical care ranked in the top ten percent in the nation received thi
distinction. : '

Physician Quality Reports™ - We provide quality information on over 620,000 physicians. ~This information.includes, to th
_extent available through our data sources, primary and secondary specialty areas, medical school attended, years since medical school
address, telephone number, board certification, hospital affiliation and-federal or state medical board sanction information. This dat
is compiled from a variety of public and private data sources. As not all physician information is identified by a specific physicial
identifier (e.g. Unique.Physician Identification Number, or UPIN), we have developed an extensive matching process designed t
properly match the various data elements that we compile from numerous data sources to the appropriate physician. In most cases
our Physician Quality Reports are available to consumers for a fee. We utilize online media to attract a significant percentage of th
visitors to our website. Currently, the majority of the.traffic to our website is derived through major search engines and is displayed a
part of ‘the “free” search results. However, we also pay for certain keywords that enable HealthGrades to be dlsplayed in certai
banner or “‘paid” search results as well. ' :

We have also recently launched a program entitled, “Patient - Provider Gateway™”, under which a physician can sponsor his o
her own profile as, described below. Physician Quality Reports for physicians that are part1c1pat1ng in our Patient - Provider Gatewa
program are made available to consumers w1thout charge

. Patient - Provider Gateway™ - This.program is designed to increase the efficiency and profitability of participating physician
through marketing and patient education. :Under this programs we design a premium profile for the physician that incorporate
HealthGrades’ source-verified information (e.g., board certification, years-in practice, etc.) as well as information provided directl
from the physician (e.g., practice philosophy, office hours, etc.). This'premium profile is then made available, without charge, to al
consumers searching the HealthGrades website. The Patient - Provider.Gateway is designed-to give physicians an opportunity t
engage in a cost-effective complement to other traditional marketing mediums (e.g., telephone directories, newspapers, radi
billboards, etc.). In addition, unlike many of the traditional marketing mediums, we provide the ability to measure the success of thes
-online.marketing efforts through our performance repomng which tracks, among other things, the number of consumers that view th
‘physician’s premium profile. ‘ ' :

Nursing Home Ratings - We provide ratings of the performance of nursing homes across the United States that are Medicare o
Medicaid certified and active in these programs. These ratings are typically updated on a monthly basis. In preparing the ratings, w
analyze. licensing survey data from CMS’s Online Survey Certification ‘and Reporting (OSCAR) database.-and complaint data fro
CMS’s Skilled Nursing Facility (SNF) Complaint database. Licensing surveys are inspections that assess compliance with standard
of patient care such as staffing, quality of care and cleanliness. Complaint surveys are investigations of complaints and seriou
problems. Nursing homes whose most recent survey date was more than 20 months prior.to the date the data was received b
"HealthGrades are not included in the .analysis. Stand-alone Medicare. and/or Medicaid nursing homes are analyzed apart’ fro
Medicare, hospital-based nursing homes. We do not rate Medicare, hospital-based nursing homes because these facilities are designe
for short-term patient care. In addition, nursing homes with only one licensing survey are not included in our analysis. The ratings ar
assigned on a state by state basis, rather than nationally, because the surveys from which information is derived are conducted by stat
agencies, and there may be variations between the states’ survey processes and results. The highest rated 30% of nursing home
receive five stars, and the middle 40% of nursing homes receive three stars. - . T




Informatlon and Related Serv1ces for Hospltals, Employers, Consumers, Benefits Consultmg Firms, Payers and Professmnals
t

The information prov1ded on our www.healthgrades. com website, and the database from which this mformatlon is derlved forms
the basis of our marketing efforts. While some information is provided free of charge on our website, we seek to generate revenues
from hospitals, as well as employers consumers and others as descnbed below:

Services for Hospitals - We offer programs that prov1de busmess development tools and marketmg assistance for hosp1tals seeking to
distinguish themselves with respect to their clinical quality. We also provide consulting services and analytical products for hospitals
seeking to understand and improve their quahty Our programs described in more detail below, primarily cover the followmg clinical
service lines: : ‘ :

Cardiac;

Orthopedics;

Vascular,

Pulmonary; ,
Neurosciences; 1 \
Gastrointestinal; :
Critical care;
General surgery;
Maternity care; and
Women’s health

" Strategic Quality Initiative (SQI). We offer our SQI (Strategic: Quahty In1t1at1ve) program to highly rated providers only after our
ratings are completed we do not adjust our ratmgs based on whether a provider is willing to license with us.

; ‘ v
The SQI program provides business development and 'marketing tools to hospitals that are highly rated by us. Under our SQI
program, we license the commercial use of the HealthGrades corporate mark, applicable data and multiple marketing messages that
may be used by hospitals to demonstrate third party vahdanon of excellence and HealthGrades online marketing services, including,
among other things: '
HealthGrades’ name, logo, stars and current ratings data including performance score;
National designation (e.g., Top 5% in the Nation, Top 10% in the Nation) as apphcable
Specialty Excellence Award for a licensed service line as apphcable
State rank (i.e., Best in State, Best in Region) as apphcable (not available for maternity care or women’s health)
Marketing messages developed and approved by HealthGrades, '
Premium placement of Enhanced Hospital Profile on the HealthGrades’ website in the physician search section for the
Patient — Provider Gateway (PPG) Service Line(s) licensed;
o Search engine optimization for the PPG Service Line(s) 11censed with Client’s market area(s) as defined by the U.S. Census
Bureau by county;
. & Client password-protected access to a template in which Cl1ent can 1nput and update its proﬁle information at Client’s
convenience; and "
* Ratings compansons developed and approved by HealthGrades

The license may be in a single service line (for example, Card1ac) or multiple service lines (for example, Cardiac, Neurosciences
and Orthopedics). In addition, the SQI program provides ongoing dccess to HealthGrades® marketing service and resources, including
our in-house healthcare consultants, tailored to the hospital’s specific needs.

Strategic Quality Partnership (SQP), The SQP program (formerly, Distinguished Hospital Program or, “DHP”) recognizes clinical
excellence in hospitals across our range of service lines. Hospitals that contract with us for the SQP program receive all of the SQI
features described above with respect to their licensed service areas. In addition, hospitals can reference the additional Distinguished
Hospital Award for Clinical Excellence™ des1gnat10n Hospital clients are provided with addltronal marketing and planning
assistance with respect to the Drstmgulshed Hospital Award des1gnat1on as well as a trophy for dlsplay at the hospital. This program
also includes a quality analysis module to help hospitals understand their ratings and what they can do to continue to improve their
quality.




During 2003 and prior years, as part of our SQP and SQI programs, we provided certain exclusivity rights for client hospitals. In
most cases, for the particular service lines.subject to license by our hospital clients, we agreed not to provide similar marketing
services to a maximum of three hospitals selected by the client. However, we did not remove ratings of an “excluded” hospital from
our website or change the ratings in any way.. Beginning in January 2004, we ceased offering exclusivity under our contracts. For
hospitals that signed agreements with us during 2003 and prior years,. we will continue 'to honor the exclusivity provisions. in their
contracts solely for the remaining term of the agreement. As our-agreements are typically -three years (with the ability to terminate on
an annual basrs) we anticipate that all exclusivity provrsrons will expire by the end of 2006.

Dlstmgulshed Hospital Program for Patient SafetVTM (DHP PS).. The DHP-PS. recogmzes hospitals with the best patlent safety
records in the nation. This award recognizes exceptional outcomes based on thirteen patient safety indicators from the AHRQ. Under
our DHP-PS program, we license the commercial use of the HealthGrades corporate mark, applicable data and marketing messages
that may be used by hospitals to demonstrate third party validation of excellence, including:

¢ HealthGrades name and logo.
e Distinguished Hospital Award for Patient Safety (“DHA-PS”) designation and trophy for that year.
¢  Marketing messages developed by HealthGrades.

This program also includes a quality analysis module to assist hospitals in understanding their ratings and what they can do to
continue to improve their quality.

Quality Assessment and Improvement (QAD. Our QAI program is principally designed to help a hospital improve the quality of
its care in particular service lines. Using our database and on-site interviews, we can measure how well the hospital performs relative
to national and regional best practices and help identify measures to improve quality. Detailed quality comparisons are also available
at the hospital, physician group and individual physician level. Our physician-led consultants work on-site with the hospital staff and
physicians to present the data and assist in the quality analysis and quality improvement. Under our QAI program, with respect to the
areas licensed by the hospital, we will provide services including, but not limited to, the following: periodic onsite visits; detailed
analysis of the last two years of client’s all—payer data; and individual quality profiles for high volume physicians.

Quahty Assessment (QA). The QA program involves our provision of an on-site presentation to administrative, physician and
quality improvement staff, including a detailed, quality analysis and report of the last thre¢ years of client’s Medicare data within the
service areas licensed by the hospital. This analysis includes:

National and Five Star performer benchmarks; =~

Analysis of the hospital’s annual actual and predicted outcome data;
Risk adjusted analysis and comparison of hospital’s documented and coded risk factors;

Risk adjusted analysis and comparison of hospital’s docurhented and coded comphcatlons and
Summary analysrs presenting key observations and recommendauons for overall improvement.

Upon completion of the QA program the client has the opnon at a reduced fee, to pamcrpate in a QAI program for the licensed
service line.

Quality Report for Hospital Professionals™ - Clinical Service Line. We provide hospitals with a comprehensive report that
enables them to improve quality of care by benchmarking their outcomes against national five-star hospitals and local competitors,
detailing the strengths and weaknesses of their public quality profile and analyzmg their quality data underlying their specific star
ratmgs :

" " Quality Report for Hospital Professionals™ - Patient Safety. We provide reports that analyze hospitals’ performance within
thirteen patient safety indicators established by the Agency of Healthcare Research and Quality (AHRQ), compares their performance
against the best practice benchmark, the national average and the1r state average and details the strengths and weaknesses of their
public safety proﬁle : : : .

Additional Services for Employers, Benefits Consulting Firms, Payers and Others —We license access to, and customize our
database for, employers, benefits consulting firms, payers and others. Modules currently available for license are as follows:

¢  Hospital Quality Guide™

¢ Physician Quality Guide™

*  Nursing Home Quality Guide™




¢  Home Health Quality Guide™ ! R '

[ . .
We offer our customers these modules in a standard format without customization for specific geographic areas or provider networks,
through our Quality Ratings Suite™ (QRS) product. For an additional fee, customers can integrate our modules within their online
provider directories, and we can customize our database for specific geographic areas and provider networks as well as modify the
look and feel of the modules. - Depending on the client's needs, iwe can customize our content for the intended users. Some of the
healthcare quality information available to our customers and their: users within our modules are as follows: .

Hospital Quality Guide

e  Easy-to-understand star ratings on over 100 medical issues (27 medical issues utilizing our methodology and over 73 medical
issues utilizing 3M’s APR-DRG methodology) and by service line based on risk-adjusted outcome measures;
Consumer-friendly navigation and terminology;

Cost, length of stay, procedure volume and distance to facility;

Hospital profile information; and

The Leapfrog Group safety measures. ‘ !

Physician Quality Guide

Addresses and phone numbers; : s

State and federal sanction 1nformat10n (if any) within the last 5 years;
Board certification; ‘

Years since medical school; ! C !

Gender;

Foreign languages; and
Ratings of affiliated hospitals (hosp1tals for which the phys1c1an has pr1v1leges).

Nursing Home Ouahty Guide i

Overall star rating based on comparison to other fac111t1es within the state;
Details of the last four licensing surveys;

Complaint investigations; ; . i
Repeat violations; and ‘

State averages for violations and inspections.

Home Health Quality Guide

| ‘
Overall star rating based on comparison to other home health agencies within an individual state;
Licensing survey deficiencies; ,
Complaint investigations; and
Repeat violations.

Healthcare Quality Reports for Professionals™ - We offer comprehensive quality information to organizations in need of current
and historical quality information on nursing homes and hospitals. In addition, we offer reports on physicians that contain detailed
information, with respect to education, professional licensing history and other items.

! i .

Nursing Home Quality Reports for Professionals™ - Our primary customers for our Nursing Home Quality Reports for
professionals are medical professional liability underwriters. We currently offer the following three categories of reports on nursing
homes: Nursing Home Quality Report; Executive Summary Reports and Risk Assessment Report. Our Nursing Home Quality Report
for Professionals contains detailed information on ownership, certification history, staffing and patient demographics as well as
performance and ranking data from health, state complaint and licensing surveys. Our Executive Summary Report is a three-page
report, which summarizes this information. Our Risk Assessment .Report is a two to three page textual analysis of the Nursing Home
Quality Report that highlights potential problem areas within a facility that require risk management.

Hospital Reports for Professionals™ - Our Hospital Reports contain detailed information on ownership, services provided and
clinical performance outcomes. Some of the features of our reports include:



Risk and severity-adjusted performance measures for cardiac, neurosciences, stroke, vascular, orthopedics and pulmonary
service lines (as well as the underlying medical issue for each service line);

Programmatic ratings for women’s health and obstetrics; .

Comparative statistics and state/national benchmarks; ' o

Infections, complication and mortality rates; and - ’ S . : .

"Cases At Risk" analysis, which projects how many cases are hkely to have adverse outcomes based upon our proprretary
mortality or complication rate analysis. g : ~

Physician Reports for Professionals™ - Our Physician Reports contain detailed information on a physician’s demographics,

which include:

® & & o o o

t
I

Education history;

Professional licensing history;

Board certifications;

State medical board and Medicare sanction history;

Hospital and health plan affiliations; and

Our quality ratings for each hospital with which the physician is affiliated.

' ’

Healthcare Quality Reports for Consumers™ - We offer comprehensive quality information to consumers that provides current and
historical quality information on hospitals and nursing homes. In addition, we offer reports on physrcrans that contain detailed
information with respect to education, professional licensing history and other iteths.

Hospital Quality Reports for Consumers - Our Hospital Quality Reports for Consumers include:

Ratings for all procedures and diagnoses rated by HealthGrades for the hospital;
Survey data prepared in connection with the Leapfrog Group; and :
HealthGrades’ methodology and helpful hints for choosing a hospital.

Nursing Home Quality Reports for Consumers™ - Our Nursing Home Quality Reports for Consumers include:

Our rating for the particular nursing home;

Health survey history with descriptions and severity of the deficiencies for the last four 11censmg surveys
Instances of repeated deficiencies; ‘

How the nursing home compares to others in the state; and

Our methodology and helpful hints for choosing a nursing home.

oo

Physician Quality Reports for Consumers™ - Our Physician Quality Reports for Consumers include:

Arrangements w1th Other Servnce Provnders

Addresses and phone numbers;

Board certification information; , S

Education information; ’

State and federal sanction information (if any) within the last 5 years,

Name and address of area hosprtals B - .

Gender and age; » B « : :

National comparative stanstrcs in board certification and sanction activity' regardrng physicians in the same specialty ﬁeld
and

Informatron on how to choose a physrclan wrth a checkhst and gurde

ol
he
R

R

We have entered into arrangements with other service providers in an effort to increase our name recognition and'market
presence, as well as enhance our service offermgs The followmg isa summary of our current arrangements for the provrsron of joint
product offerings.

Ingenix/HealthGrades Quality Rating Suite. We'previously entered into an~arrangement with Ingenix, Inc., to market our Quality
Ratings Suite (described above under “Additional Services for Employers, Benefits Consulting Firms, Payers and Others™) 1o
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managed care organizations, payers, employers and benefits- consulting firms through Ingenix’ sales and marketing teams. Ingenix
formerly provided some of the physician data that was included in our Quality Ratings Suite. In November 2005, we provided notice
to Ingenix that we would not renew the agreement, and the agreement terminated on December 31, 2005. Under the terms of the
agreement, we and Ingenix will continue to perform services under any ongoing customer license for joint HealthGrades/Ingenix
customers until the expiration or termination of the initial term of the license. In accordance with the agreement, we are now utilizing
the physician data derived from Ingenix solely for existing joint HealthGrades/Ingenix customers.

Under the Ingenix/HealthGrades Quality Rating Suite, customers were offered project management, information technology, user
support and communications services (for example; 1nformat10n for users of the Ingenix/HealthGrades Quality Rating Suite and
instructions on how to access the 1r1format10n) " S

1
I 1

Typically, Ingenix added the HealthGrades’ QRS functionality to services available to its existing clients who license Ingenix’
provider lookup online application. ' An additional licensing fee is charged, of which a portion is payable to us, with Ingenix retaining
the remaining part of the fee. We only recognize the fees that will ultimately be paid to.us as revenue from Ingenix, and not the entire
amount of the licensing fee. We recognize revenues related to these agreements in a ‘straight-line manner over the term of the
agreement. ‘ " ‘
Competition = . j ‘ ,

. d

. With respect to our quality servicés for hospitals, we face! competition from data providers, such as Solucient and healthcare
consulting companies such as GE Medical Systems and Premier t'hat offer certain consulting services to hospitals. We believe that the
-ability to demonstrate the value of marketing and consulting programs name brand recognition and cost are the principal factors that
affect competition. ;

We face competition with respect to our service offerings to employers, tenefits consulting firms, payers, consumers and others
from companies that provide online information and decision support tools regarding healthcare providers and physicians. There are
several companies that currently offer online healthcare information and support tools such as Subimo and HealthShare Technologies
(recently acquired by WebMD). We believe that the ability to prov1de accurate and comprehensive healthcare information in a manner
+that is cost-effective to the client is the principal factor that affects competition in this area.

]

Company History

We were incorporated in Delaware in December 1995 under the name. Specialty Care Network, Inc. Upon commencement of
operations in 1996, we were principally'engaged in the management of physician practices engaged in musculoskeletal care, which is
the treatment of conditions relating to bones, joints, muscles and connective tissues. Due to difficulties in the physician practice
management industry in general, and with respect to our affiliated physician'practices in particular, we terminated or restructured our
‘arrangements with various physician practices. As a result, .the scope of our physician practice management business became
increasingly limited in subsequent years, particularly after a restructurmg of .our arrangements with nine practices in June 1999 and
ceased entirely in September 2002 .‘

During 1998, we began to focus on the provision of healthcare 1nformat10n through the estabhshment of our healthcare provider
quality ratings and profile information, which we first introduced on our website. Since that time, we have expanded the scope of our
healthcare information services to encompass the additional services described above.

In January 2000, we changed our name to Healthgrades.com, Inc. In November 2000, we changed our name to Health Grades,
Inc. : ' : -

Government Regulation ]

The delivery of healthcare services has become one of the most highly regulated of professional and business endeavors in the
United States. Both the federal government and the individual state governments are responsible for overseeing the activities of
individuals and businesses engaged in the delivery of healthcare;services.” The focus of Federal regulation of healthcare businesses
and professionals is based primarily upon- their participation in' the Medicare and Medicaid programs. Each of these programs is
financed, at least in part, with Federal funds. State jurisdiction is based upon its financing of healthcare as well as the states’ authority
to regulate and protect the health and welfare of its citizens. !

A provision of the federal Socml Securlty Act, commonly known as the Medicare/Medicaid Anti-Kickback Law, prohibits
kickbacks, rebates and bribes in return for referrals. This law provides an extremely broad base for finding violations. Indeed, any
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remuneration, direct or-indirect, offered, paid, solicited, or received, in return for referrals of patients or business for which payment
may be made in whole or in part under Medicare, or a state healthcare program (Medicaid) could be considered a violation of law.
The language of the Anti-Kickback Law also prohibits payments made to aniyone to induce them to "recommend purchasing, leasing,
or ordering any good, facility, service, or item for which payment may be made in whole or in part” by Medicare. Criminal penalties
under the Anti-Kickback Law include fines up to $25,000, imprisonment for up to 5 years, or both. In addition, acts constituting a
violation of the Anti-Kickback Law may also lead to civil penalties, such as fines, assessments and exclusion from participation in the
Medicare and Medicaid programs.

To provide more direct guidance on the interpretation of the Anti-Kickback Law, the Office.of Inspector General, or OIG, of.the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) has developed regulations regarding what types of business arrangements are not
to be considered violative of the law and to develop criteria to be applied to any new arrangement to determine whether it is
acceptable under the law. The regulations are known as “Safe Harbors” and address activities that may technically violate the Anti-
Kickback Law, but are not to be considered as illegal when carried on in conformance with the proposed regulation. The OIG has also
set'forth specific procedures by which the DHHS, through the OIG, in consultation with the Department of Justice (DOJ), will issue
;advisory opinions to outside parties regarding the interpretation and applicability of anti-kickback and certain other statutes relating to
Federal and State healthcare programs. :

Whenever an arrangement exists with an entity capable of providing services reimbursed by Medicare or Medicaid, the
arrangement must be analyzed to determine if the Anti-Kickback Law is implicated (i.e., can the arrangement be characterized as
involving remuneration intended to.induce referrals for the provision of covered services). Because our customers will, in' some
instances, be healthcare providers, we must be mindful of state and federal anti-kickback laws; that is, we want to be sure that-any
payments to us will not be considered a payment for a referral of patients or business that HealthGrades controls.

The only payments made to us by providers and practitioners will be for access to information, to make their HealthGrades’
profiles available to consumers without cost, or for evaluation and consulting.services - not to induce referrals. Federal courts have
interpreted the anti-kickback provisions very broadly to prohibit even those payments made in return for legitimate. services, if the
-intent to induce referrals can be inferred from the arrangement. However, where the payments made under an agreement represent fair
market value or reasonable remuneration for the goods, services or other consideration being received, there should be less factual
support for any inference that payments are in exchange for referrals. Moreover, we do not control patients, doctors, or others in a
position to refer patients or other business covered under Medicare or Medicaid.

There is a potential that our arrangements could be brought within the personal services and management agreement safe harbor
regulation. The personal services and management agreement safe harbors provide that payments under such agreements will not
constitute remuneration under the Anti-Kickback Law if the payments meet seven criteria, including that the agreement is set out in
writing and is signed by the parties, and that aggregate compensation is set in advance, is consistent with fair market value and does
not take into account the volume or value of any referrals or business generated between the parties. Unless an arrangement meets all
of the terms of a safe harbor, the government could attempt to draw an inference that payments made constitute remuneration and that
at least one purpose of the remuneration is to induce referrals. However, failire to meet the safe harbors does not render an
arrangement per se unlawful. We believe that our operations comply with applicable legal regulatory requirements of the Anti-
Kickback Law. However, some of these laws have been applied to payments by physicians for marketing and referral services and
could constrain our relationships, including financial and marketing relationships with customers such as hospitals. It is possible that
additional or changed laws, regulations-or guidelines could be adopted in the future that could affect our business. .

Many states have laws that prohibit payment of kickbacks or other payment of remuneration to those in a position to control the
referral of patients. Therefore, it is possible that our activities may be found not to comply with these laws. Noncompliance with such
laws could subject us to penalties and sanctions. Nonetheless, to our knowledge, we are not in violation of any legal requirements
under such state laws.

In addition to the anti-kickback laws, false claims are prohibited pursuant to federal criminal and civil statutes. Criminal
provisions prohibit knowingly filing false claims, making false statements or. claims to be'made by others. Civil provisions under the
federal False Claims Act (FCA) prohibit the filing. of claims or causing the filing of claims that the person filing knew were false,
Criminal penaltiés include fines and imprisonment. Civil penalties under the FCA include fines up to $10,000 per claim, plus treble
damages, for each claim filed. In addition, under the Deficit Reduction Act of 2005, states are encouraged to enact their own false
claims laws, which could increase the number of false claims suits at the state.level. :

Although we are not filing claims ourselves, 11ab111ty under the FCA can extend to those who cause the filings of claims. To the

extent that consulting advice provided to our customers could be construed as aiding or abetting the presentation of false claims by our
customers, there could be false claims liability, although we endeavor to provxde advice that cannot be so construed.
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Healthcare Legislation. 1t is our belief that the Medicare Prescrif)tion Drug Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 has not had
a major impact on our arrangements with providers. Future legislation may be .introduced and-considered by. Congress and state
legislatures that is designed to change access to and payment for healthcare services in the United States. We can make no prediction
as to. whether future leglslauon will be enacted or, if enacted, the effect that Such Ieglslatlon will have on us.

+

Prwacy of Informanon and HIPAA

1

Consumers sometlmes enter private information about themselves or their family. members when using our services. Also, our
systems record use patterns when consumers access our databases that may reveal health related information or other private
information about the user. In addition, information regarding employee usage of healthcare providers and facilities can also be
compiled by our systems in connection with services we offer to employers and other payers. Numerous federal and state laws and

regulations govern collection, dissemination, use and confidentiality of patient- 1dent1f1able health information, including:
?I

state privacy and confidentiality laws; k :

state laws regulating healthcare: profess1ona1s such as physicians, pharmamsts and nurse practitioners;

Medicaid laws; !

the U.S. Health Insurance Portablhty and Accountab1]1ty Act of 1996, or HIPAA as described in detail below, and related
rules proposed by the Health Care Financing Adrmmstratlon and

e CMS standards for electronic transmission of health data,

e e o 0

Under HIPAA, Congress set national standards for the protection of health information created, maintained or transmitted by
health plans, health care clearinghouses and certain health care providers (“covered entities”). Under the law and regulations known
collectively as the Privacy and Security Rules, covered entities must implement standards to protect and guard against the misuse of
individually identifiable health information. Although we are not a covered entity, we believe that we have complied with the
applicable standards. Failure to timely 1mplement these standards may, under certam circumstances, tr1gger the imposition of civil or
criminal penalties. }

The Privacy and Security Rules do not replace federal, state, or other law that grarits individuals even greater privacy protections,
and covered entities are free to retain or adopt more protective policies or practices. ’ ‘

: .- i .

Most healthcare providers and payers do not carry out all of their healthcare activities and functions by themselves. Instead, they
often use the services of a variety of other persons or businesses, The Privacy and Security Rules allow covered entities to disclose
protected health information to business associates if the covered entities obtain satisfactory assurances that the business associate will
use the information only for the purposes for which it was engaged, will safeguard the information from misuse, and will comply with
certain other requirements under the Privacy and Security Rules. Although HealthGrades is not a covered entity, it may be asked to
enter into business associate agreements with covered entities. ‘

Covered entities may disclose protected health information to an entity in its role as a business associate only to help the covered
entity carry out its healthcare functions — not for the business assdciate’s independent use or purposes, except as needed for the proper
management and administration of the business associate.

1

If a covered entity finds out about a material breach or violation of the privacy related provisions of the contract by the business
associate, it must take reasonable steps to cure the breach or end the violation, and, if unsuccessful, terminate the contract with the
business associate. If termination is not feasible (e.g., where there are no other viable business alternatives for the covered entity), the
covered entity must report the problem to the Department of Health and Human Services Office for Civil Rights.

Government Regulation of the Internet :

The Internet is currently the subject of a fair number.of statues and regulations, and the trend for the foreseeable future appears to
be that of an increase in the quantity and the complexity of regulation. Any new or revised law or regulation pertaining to the Internet,
or the application or interpretation of existing laws and regulations, could decrease demand for our services, increase our cost of doing
business, decrease the availability of the data we obtain and use from third parties, increase the costs of online marketing, or otherwise
cause our business to suffer. ‘ |

Laws and regulations have been adopted in the United States and throughout the world, and additional laws and regulations may
be adopted in 'the future, that address Internet-related issues,.including online content, privacy, online marketing, unsolicited




commercial e-mail, pricing and quality of products and services. This legislation could increase our cost of doing business and
negatively affect our business. Moreover, it will take many years to determine the full extent to which older laws and regulations
governing issues like property ownership, libel, negligence, taxes, and personal privacy are applicable to the Internet.

Currently, U.S. privacy law consists of numerous disparate state and federal statutes regulating specific industries- that collect
personal data, or particular types or uses of personal data. For example, HIPAA consists of a large body of statutory provisions and
regulations that control the disclosure, use, and transfer of personal health information in digital form by providers and others. One
recent trend is the enactment of privacy and security statutes that require the disclosure to authorities and to data subjects of any
breach of security of a database of personal information. Several other privacy laws and regulations predate and therefore do not
specifically address online activities. In addition, a number of comprehensive legislative and regulatory privacy proposals have taken
effect or are now under consideration by federal, state and local governments in the United States. All such privacy laws may
decrease access to the raw data that we use, and may increase our costs of compliance with such laws and regulations in the conduct of

our business.

In addition, the regulation of the Internet outside the United States may affect our cost of doing business, directly or indirectly, in
the long run. For example, privacy law in the European Union and in a number of other countries is far more restrictive then U.S.
privacy law in terms of how personal information may be collected, stored, processed, transmitted, and shared with others. As a
result, the Company may not be able to profitably expand its business to the European Union or other countries that have similar laws,
and the Company may not be able to realize the benefits of reducing costs by outsourcing any of its operations that involve the
processing of personal information to such countries. Further, the more restrictive privacy and other Internet-related laws and
regulations in other countries have served as a model for newer and more restrictive privacy and other Internet-laws and regulations in

the United States.
Ihrellectual Property

We regard the protection of our intellectual property rlghts to be 1mportam We rely on a combination of copyright, trademark
trade secret restrictions and contractual provisions to protect our intellectual property rights. We require selected employees to enter
into confidentiality and invention assignment agreements as well as non-competition agreements. The contractual provisions and other
steps we have taken to protect our intellectual property may not prevent misappropriation of our technology or deter thrrd parties from
developing similar or competing technologies.

We own federal trademark registrations for the marks HealthGrades, The Healthcare Quality Experts and The Healthcare Rating
Experts. We have also applied for registered trademarks for the phrase, “Guiding America to Better Healthcare” as well as the
HealthGrades Checkmark & Star Logo. : : ‘

We own registered copyrights for the following HealthGrades’ databases and reports:

Databases:
¢ Hospital Ratings;
¢  Hospital Awards; and
¢ Hospital Patient Safety

Reports:

Hospital Quality Report™;

Physician Quality Report™;

Physician Quality Comparison Report™;-
Nursing Home' Quality Report™; and
Nursing Home Quality Comparison Report™

There is also significant uncertainty regarding the applicability to the Internet of existing laws regarding matters such as property
ownership and other intellectual property rights. The vast majority of these laws were adopted prior to the advent of the Internet and,
as a result, do not contemplate or address the unique issues of the Internet and related technologies. In addition, new laws that

' regulate activities on the Internet have been passed and may be passed, which may have unanticipated effects.

For further information, see “Risk Factors - Our propriety rights may not be fully protected, and we may be subject to intellectual
property infringement claims by others.”




Employees

As of December 31, 2005 we had 106 employees, most of whom were located at our corporate offices in Golden, Colorado. Of
these employees, 46 were engaged in sales and' marketing, client consulting or client administrative support, 47 in product
development (including information technology/web development) and 13 in general and administrative (including finance,
accounting, IT infrastructure, etc.). We are not subject to any collective bargaining agreements.




Item 1A. Risk Factors. . o :
e : S Risks Related to Our Business. i© : , .

OUR BUSINESS WILL SUFFER IF WE ARE NOT ABLE TO OBTAIN RELIABLE DATA AS A BASIS FOR OUR
HEALTHCARE INFORMATION.

To provide our healthcare information, we must be able to receive comprehensive, reliable data. We currently obtain this data from
a number of public and private sources. Currently, the information we utilize to compile our hospital ratings is acquired from the
Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (“CMS”). For the year ended December 31, 2005, revenues derived from SQP, SQI, and
QALI products accounted for approximately 72% of our total ratings and advisory revenue. These products are based exclusively on.
our hospital ratings. Moreover, some of our QRS modules are based on information acquired from CMS. Our business could suffer if
some of our data sources, particularly, CMS, were to begin charging for use or access to this data, or cease to make such information
available, and suitable alternative sources were not identified on a timely basis. Moreover, our ability to attract and retain customers is
dependent on the reliability of the information that we use and purchase. If our information is inaccurate or otherwise erroneous, our
reputation and customer following could be damaged. In the past, we have had disputes with two providers of information who sought
to terminate our arrangements based on allegations, which we denied, that our use of the information violated the terms of our
agreements with the providers. We have located alternate sources of information or modified the scope of information provided in
response to these disputes. Nevertheless, our failure to obtain suitable information, if needed to use in place of information provided
by a source that determines to stop providing information, or which charges substantially more for such data, could hurt our business.

FAILURE TO EFFECTIVELY MANAGE THE GROWTH OF OUR OPERATIONS AND INFRASTRUCTURE COULD
DISRUPT OUR OPERATIONS AND PREVENT US FROM MAINTAINING OR INCREASING PROFITABLITY

We have expanded meaningfully in the past few years and are seeking to increase our sales efforts, attract new clients, maintain
existing clients and develop new products. To manage our growth, we must successfully attract qualified personnel and successfully
integrate new personnel into our operations. Our failure to manage personnel and otherwise appropriately manage expansion of our
business could adversely affect our business and future growth. '

WE MAY BE SUED FOR INFORMATION WE OBTAIN OR INFORMATION RETRIEVED FROM OUR WEBSITES OR
OTHERWISE PROVIDED TO EMPLOYERS AND OTHERS.

We may be subjected to claims for defamation, negligence, copyright or trademark or patent infringement, personal injury or other
legal theories relating to the information we publish on our websites or otherwise provide to customers. These types of claims have
been brought, sometimes successfully, against online services as well as print publications in the past. We have received threats from
some providers that they will assert defamation and other claims in connection with the information posted on our healthgrades.com
website.

We have had disputes with certain physicians with respect to the accuracy of their data that is included in reports we sell to
consumers and professionals, and have settled litigation with some of these physicians. Continuing to improve the accuracy of our
data by both internal process measures and by obtaining data from various sources for comparative purposes will continue to be
important for us.

Patients who file lawsuits against providers often name as defendants all persons or companies with any nexus to the providers. As
a result, patients may file lawsuits against us based on, among other things, treatment provided by hospitals or other facilities that are
highly rated by us, or by doctors who are identified on our website. In addition, a court or government agency may take the position
that our delivery of health information directly, or information delivered by a third-party website that a consumer accesses through our
website, exposes us to malpractice or other personal injury liability for wrongful delivery of healthcare services or erroneous health
information. Such exposure may adversely affect our business. Moreover, the amount of insurance we maintain may not be sufficient
to cover all of the losses we might incur from these claims and legal actions. In addition, insurance for some risks is difficult,
impossible or too costly to obtain, and as a result, we may not be able to purchase insurance for some types of risks.

IF WE DO NOT STRENGTHEN RECOGNITION OF OUR BRAND NAME, OUR ABILITY TO EXPAND OUR BUSINESS
WILL BE IMPAIRED.

To expand our audience of online users, increase our online traffic and increase interest in our other healthcare information
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services, we must strengthen récognition of our brand name. To be successful in'this effort, consumers must perceive us as a trusted
source of healthcare information; hospitals and ether providers must perceive-us as an effective marketing and sales channel for their
services and products; and employees, payers, insurers, consumers and others must perceive us as a source of valuable information
that' can 'be used ‘te enhance the quality and-cost-effectiveness; of healthcare.- We may be required to incréase substantially our
marketing budget in our efforts to strengthen brand name recogmtron Our busrness w111 suffer if our efforts are not productrve

OUR BUSINESS WILL SUFFER IF WE ARE UNABLE TO ATTRACT RETAIN AND MOTIVATE HIGHLY c%KILLED
EMPLOYEES.

- Our. ablhty to execute our business plan and be successful depends upon our ability to attract, retain: and .motivate highly skilled
employees when needed. As we expand our business, we need to hire additional personnel to support our operations. We may be
unable to retain our key employees:or attract or retain other highly, qualified employees in the future. If we do not succeed in attractlng
new personnel as needed and retaining and motivating our current: personnel our business will suffer.

WE MAY EXPERIENCE SYSTEM FAILURES THAT COULD INTERRUPT OUR SERVICES.

~The success of our healthgrades.com website and activities related to the ‘website will depend on the capacity,.reliability and
security of our network infrastructure.- We rely .on telephone’ conmunication: providers to provide the external telecommunications
infrastructure necessary for Internet communications. We will alse dépend onproviders of online content and services for some of the
content and applications that we make available through healthgrades.com. Any significant interruptions in our services or increase in
response time could result in.the loss of potential or existing userstor customers. Although we maintain insurance for our business, we
cahnot guarantee that our insurance will be-adequate to compensate us forlosses that may occur or.to provrde for costs associated with
business interruptions. ¢ .- S : R : g

We must be able to operate our website 24 hours a day, 7 days a week wrthout materral 1nterrupt10n 'Io operate without
interruption; Wwe and our content providers must guard against: ¢ ' :

e damage from fire, power loss and other natural disasters;
¢ communications failures;. e P A

R S e \ o Lo

o . software and hardware érrors, failures or crashes;
e security breaches, computer viruses and similar disruptive probléms: and
e  other potential interruptions. R
. ‘|’|

Our website' may' be required to accommodate a high volume of traffic and deliver frequently updated information. Our website
users may’ experrence slower ‘response times or system faxlures due to increased traffic on our website or for a variety of othér reasons.
We could experience disruptions or ‘intefruptions in service due to the failure or delay in the transmission or recerpt of this
information. Any significant 1nterrupt10n of our operations could damage our business.

OUR PROPRIETARY RIGHTS MAY NOT BE FULLY PROTECTED, AND WE MAY BE SUBJECT TO INTELLECTUAL
PROPERTY INFRINGEMENT CLAIMS BY OTHERS.

If we fail to adequately protect our intellectual property rights, our business could be harmed by making it easier for our
competitors to duplicate our services. We have certain tradémarks and.copyrights:thdt have been registered with the U.S. Patent and
Trademark Office and the U.S. Copyright Office, respectively. In addition, we require some of our employees to enter into
conﬁdentra]tty and invention -assignment agreements and; in more limited: cases, nen-competition agreements. Nevertheless, our
efforts to establish and protect our proprietary rights may be inadequate to prevent imitation of our services or branding by others or
may be subject to cha]lenge by others. Furthermore, our ability to protect some of our proprietary rights is uncertain since legal
standards relating to the validity, enforceability and scope of 1ntellectual property-rights in Internet related industries are uncertain and
are still evolving.

In addition to the risk of failing to-adequatély protect our proprietary rights, there is a risk that. we may become subject to a claim
that we infringe upon the proprietary rights of others. Although we do not believe that we are infringing upon the rights of others, third
parties may claim that we are doing so. The possibility of inadvertently infringing upon the proprietary rights of another is increased
for businesses such as ours because there is significant uncertainty, regarding the applicability to the Internet of existing laws regarding



‘matters such as copyrights and other intellectual property rights. A claim of intellectual property infringement may cause us to.incur
significant expenses in.defending against the claim. If we are not successful in defending against an infringement claim, we could be
liable for substantial damages or may be prevented from offering some aspects of our services. We may. be required to make: royalty
payments, which could be substantial, to a party claiming that we have infringed their rights. These events could damage our business.

WE MAY LOSE BUSINESS IF HOSPITALS AND OTHERS UTILIZE OUR NAME AND RATINGS WITHOUT OUR
PERMISSION .

In order for a hospital to use our name and ratings information, we require them to enter into a marketing agreement with us. -
However, hospitals, the media and others may take the position that certain use of our-ratings is “fair use” and not proprietary. - We
will need to continue to enforce the protection of our proprietary. information and aggressively.pursue selectéd hospitals -and others
that utilize our name and ratings information W1thout our permission. If our enforcement efforts are unsuccessful our business may be
adversely affected. : : -

WE MAY LOSE BUSINESS IF WE ARE UNABLE TO KEEP UP WITH RAPID TECHNOLOGICAL OR OTHER CHANGES.

If we are unable to keep up with changing technology and other factors related to our market, we may be-unable to attract and
retain users.or customers, which would reduce or limit our revenues. The markets in which we compete are characterized'by rapidly
changing technology, evolving technological standards in the industry, frequent new service and product announcements and changing
consumer demand: Our future success will depend on our ability to-adapt to these changes, and to continuously improve the content,
features and reliability of our services in response to competitive service and product offerings and the evolving demands of the
marketplace. In addition, the widespread adoption of new Internet networking or telecommunications technologies or other
technological changes could require us to incur substantial expenditures to modify or adapt our website or infrastructure, which might
negatively affect our ability to remain profitable.

WE RELY LARGELY ON ADVERTISING AND SEAROH- ENGINE PLACEMENT TO' GENERATE ‘TRAFFIC'. TO: OUR
WEBSITE

f L o . R O
We rely on online media to attract a significant percentage of the visitors to our web site. Prices for online advertising could
increase as a result of increased demand for advertising inventory, which would cause our expenses to increase and could result in
lower margins. Our advertising contracts with online search engines are typically short-term. If one or more search engines on which
we rely for advertising modifies or terminates its relationship with us, our expenses could increase, the number of visitors we generate
could decrease and our revenues or margins could decline. Additionally, changes to our position within search engine search results
could cause visits to our website and the number of reports ordered from our website to decline. . C

OUR BUSINESS WILL SUFFER IF WE ARE NOT ABLE TO COMPETE SUCCESSFULLY.

The market for healthcare information is new, rapidly evolving and competitive. We expect competition to increase significantly,
and our business will be adversely affected if we are unable to compete successfully. We currently compete, or potentrally compete,
with many providers of healthcare information services and products, both online and through traditional means. We compete directly
and indirectly, for users and customers principally with:

®  data providers that provide detailed utilization and outcomes information to hospitals;
¢ healthcare consulting companies;

®  companies or organizations providing or maintaining online healthcare information' :
e vendors of healthcare 1nformatron products and services dxstnbuted through other means, inicluding direct sales, ma11 and fax
messaging; - : R ‘ A co Co

" ' i il ' N " L
¢ companies and organizations provrdmg or maintaining general purpose consumer online. services that provide access to healthcare
content and services; -

¢ companies and organizations providing or maintaining public sector and non- proﬁt websites that provrde healthcare 1nformat10n
and services without advertising or commercial sponsorshrps . . L '

¢ companies and organizations providing or maintaining web search and retrieval services and other high-traffic websites; and

18




¢ publishers and distributors of traditional media, some of which have established or may establish websites
Some of these competitors are larger, have greater resources and have more experience in providing healthcare information than us.
RISKS RELATED TO HEALTHCARE INFORMATION AND THE INTERNET

HEALTHCARE REFORMS AND THE COST OF REGULATORY COMPLIANCE COULD NEGATIVELY AFFECT OUR
BUSINESS. 2

The healthcare industry is heavily regulated. In the ordinary course of business, healthcare entities and companies that do business
with them are subject to state and federal regulatory scrutiny, supervision, oversight and control. These various laws, regulations and
guidelines affect, among other matters, the provision, licensing, labeling, marketing, promotion and reimbursement of healthcare
services and products. Our failure or the failure of our customers to comply with any applicable legal or regulatory requirements, or
any investigation or audit of our or our customers’ practices could:

"

e result in limitation or prohibition of business activities;
* subject us or our customers to legal fees and expenses and adverse publicity; or

e increase the costs of regulatory compliance and, if found by a court of competent jurisdiction to have engaged in improper
practices, subject us or our customers to criminal or civil monetary fines or other penalties

A federal law commonly known as ‘the Medicare/Medicaid Anti-Kickback Law prohibits kickbacks, rebates and bribes in return
for referrals. This law provides an extremely broad base for finding violations. Indeed, any remuneration, direct or indirect, offered,
paid, solicited or received in return for referrals of patients or business for which payment may be made in whole or in part under
Medicare or Medicaid could be considered a violation of law. The statute also prohibits payments made to anyone to induce them to
“recommend purchasing, leasing or ordering any good, facility, service or item for which payment may be made in whole or in part”
by Medicare. Similar laws exist in some states.

We believe that our operations comply with applicable legal regulatory requirements of the anti-kickback laws. Nevertheless, some
of these laws have been applied to payments by physicians for marketing and referral services and could constrain our relationships,
including financial and marketing relationships with customers such as hospitals. It is possible that additional or more restrictive laws,
regulatlons or.guidelines could be adopted in the future. ,

Criminal provisions prohibit knowingly filing false claims or making false statements or causing false statements to be made by
others, and civil provisions prohibit the filing of claims or causing the filing of claims that one knows were false. Criminal penalties
include fines and imprisonment. Civil penalties under the federal False Claims Act (“FCA”) include fines of up to $10,000 per claim
plus treble damages, for each filed claim. Although we are not filing claims ourselves, liability under the FCA can extend to those who
cause claims to be filed. In addition, under the Deficit Reductlon Act of 2005, states are encouraged to enact their own false claims
laws, which could increase the number of false claims suits at the state level. To the extent that consulting advice provided to our
customers could be construed as aiding or abetting the presentation of false claims by the customers, we could be subject to false
claims liability. !

THE INTERNET IS SUBJECT TO MANY LEGAL UNCERTAINTIES AND POTENTIAL GOVERNMENT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS THAT MAY DECREASE USAGE OF OUR WEBSITE, INCREASE OUR COST OF DOING BUSINESS OR
OTHERWISE HAVE A DAMAGING EFFECT ON OUR BUSINESS

Laws and regulations have been adopted and will likely coritinue to be adopted in the future that address Internet-related issues,
including online content, user privacy, pricing, and quality of products and services. This legislation could increase our cost of doing
business and negatively affect our business. Moreover, it may«take many more years to determine the extent to which laws and
regulations passed prior to the popular use of the Internet govern issues like property ownership, libel, negligence and personal
privacy are applicable to the Internet. Currently, U.S. privacy law consists of disparate state and federal statutes regulating specific
industries that collect personal data. Most of them predate and therefore do not specifically address online activities. In addition, a
number of comprehensive legislative and regulatory privacy proposals are now under consideration by federal, state and local
governments in the United States. Laws and regulations in countries outside the United States restrict the availability of new markets
in other countries where those markets would otherwise be availdble for expansion, and reduce any potential savings in relocating any
operations of the Company to those countries. Moreover, restrictive privacy and other laws outside the United States serve as a model




for new and more restrictive laws inside the United States at both the Federal and the State levels.

Any new law or regulation pertaining to the Internet, or the application or interpretation of existing laws, could decrease usage for
our website, increase our cost of doing business or otherwise cause our business to suffer. - ;

OUR BUSINESS COULD BE IMPAIRED BY STATE AND FEDERAL LAWS DESIGNED TO PROTECT INDIVIDUAL
HEALTH INFORMATION.

If we fail to comply with current or future laws or regulations governing the collection, dissemination, use and conﬁdentiality of
patient heaith information, our business could suffer.

Consumers sometimes enter private information about themselves or their family members when using our services. Also, our
systems record use patterns when consumers access our databases that may reveal health-related information or other private
information about the user. In addition, information: regardlng employee usage of healthcare providers and facilities can also ‘be
compiled by our systems in connection with services we offer to employers and other payers. Numerous, federal and state laws and
regulations govern collection, dissemination, use and confidentiality of patient-identifiable health information, including:

¢ state privacy and confidentiality laws;
s state laws regulating healthcare professionals, such as physicians, pharmacists and nurse practitioners;

o Medicaid laws;

¢ the Health Insurance Portability and Accountab1hty Act of 1996 (“HIPAA”) and related rules proposed by the Health Care
Fmancmg Administration; and : , .

[

o (CMS standards for electronic transmission of health data

Congress may consider future legislation that would establish more strict standards for protection and use of health information.
While we are not gathering patient health information at this time and we are not a covered entity under HIPAA, other third-party
websites that consumers access through our website and employees, payers and other customers may not maintain systems to
safeguard any health information they may be collecting. In some cases, we may place our content on computers that are under the
physical control of others, which may increase the risk of an inappropriate disclosure of information. For example, we contract out the
hosting of our website to a third party. In addition, future laws or changes in current laws may necessitate costly adaptations to our

systems.

ONLINE SECURITY BREACHES COULD HARM OUR BUSINESS.

Our security measures may not prevent security breaches. Substantial or ongoing security breaches on our system or other Internet-
based systems could reduce user confidence in our website, causing reduced usage that adversely affects. our business. The secure
transmission of confidential information over the Internet is essential to maintain confidence in our websites. We believe that
consumers generally are concerned with security and privacy on the Internet, and any publicized security problems could inhibit the
growth of our provision of healthcare information on the Internet. :

We will need to incur significant expense to protect and remedy against security breaches when we identify a significant business
risk. Currently, we do not store sensitive information, such as patient information or credit card information, on our websites. If we
launch services that require us to gather sensitive information, our security expenditures will increase significantly.

A party that is able to circumvent our security systems could steal proprietary information or cause interruptions in our operations.
Security breaches could also damage. our reputation and expose us to a risk of loss or litigation and possible lability. Our insurance

policies may not be adequate to reimburse us for losses caused by security breaches. We also face risks associated with security
breaches affecting third parties conducting business over the Internet or customers and others who license our data. .

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff comments

None
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OTHER RISKS
OUR CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION AND BYLAWS INCLUDE ANTI-TAKEOVER PROVISIONS THAT MAY DETER
OR PREVENT A CHANGE OF CONTROL ;,

I

Some prOV1s1ons of our certificate of incorporation and bylaws and provisions of Delaware law may deter or prevent a takeover
attempt, including an. attempt that might result in a premium,over the market price for our common stock. Our certificate of
incorporation requires the vote of 66 2/3% of the outstanding voting securities in order to effect certain actions, including a sale of
substantially all of our assets, certain mergers and consolidations and our dissolution or liquidation, unless these actions have been
approved by a majority of the directors. Our certificate of incorporation also authorizes our Board of Directors to issue up to 2,000,000
shares of preferred stock having such rights as may be designated by our Board of Directors, without stockholder approval. Our
bylaws provide that stockliolders must follow an.advance notification procedure for certain nominations of candidates for the Board of
Directors and for certain: other stockholder business to be conducted at a stockholders meeting. The General Corporation Law of
Delaware restricts certain business combmanons with interested stockholders upon their acquisition of 15% or more of our common
stock.

All of these provisions could make it more difficult for a third party to acquire, or could discourage a third party from attempting
to acquire, control of us, and thereby could prevent our stockholders from receiving a premium for their shares. .In addition, the
foregoing provisions could 1mpa1r the ability of existing stockholders to remove and replace our management and/or our Board of
Directors.

WE HAVE NO INTENTION TO PAY DIVIDENDS ON OUR COMMON STOCK
We have never declared or paid any cash dividends on our common stock. We currently intend to retain all future earnings to
ﬁnance the expanswn of our busmess

Item 1B. Unresolved‘Staff Comments ‘.‘ |
N N ) ) | . [l
None - ! ) ' ;

Item 2. Properties

We have a lease for our approxifnatjely 28,700 square foot headquarters facility in.Golden, Colorad‘o, which expires on May 31,
2010. These facilities are suitable to accommodate our operations at their current level.

Jtem 3. Legal Proceedings

Demand for Arbitration-Agreement with Hewitt Associates LLC .
. . N : [ : i '

On March 28, 2006, we filed a Demand for Arbitration before the American Arbitration Association against Hewitt Associates LLC
(“Hewitt”). The Demand for Arbitration relates to a Development and Services Agreement with Hewitt that we entered into effective
June 30, 2005, (as amended, the “Agreement”). Under the Agreement, we were to develop and host applications that would enable
Hewitt’s clients to make available to their employees and other participants enhanced Health Grades’ health care quality information
as well as other information regarding providers in a particular health plan’s network. Such information was to include our hospital
and physician quality information along/with health plan supplied data.

Under the Agreement, during an initial evaluation period that ended -on December 31, 2005, we provided pilot services to one Hewitt
client. The Agreement provided that, at the end of the evaluation period, Hewitt would determine whether we were successful in
providing the pilot services.. In addmon during the evaluation period, Hewitt was to evaluate our capacity to collect, process,
integrate, deploy, maintain and update pr0v1der specific data received from health plans that would enable a Hewitt client participant
to determine the identity of providers.in a health plan’s network (“Network Tag Services”). If Hewitt determined that the pilot
services were net successful or otherwise did not warrant continuation of the Agreement, or if Hewitt determined that we are not
suitable to provide the Network Tag Services, Hewitt could terminate the Agreement. The Agreement provided that notice of such
termination must be sent to us no later than December 31, 2005.

If Hewitt’s evaluations were favorable, Hewitt would pay to us a fee based upon the total number of Hewitt clients’ participants with
access to our websites, and the type of services to which the participants have access, in accordance with a fee schedule attached to the
Agreement, subject to minimum payments of $3 million per annum in 2007, 2008, and 2009.
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The Demand for Arbitration alleges, among other things, that on December 31, 2005, Hewitt sent us a letter in which Hewitt
concluded that the provision of the pilot services was “successful, “ and that, with regard to the Network Tag Services, the health
plans have been slow to respond to the Hewitt/Health Grades request for data. Moreover, the Demand for Arbitration alleges that
Hewitt did not terminate the Agreement on December 31, 2005 and that follow up e-mails from Hewitt made reference to Hewitt’s
desire to “amend the existing Agreement ...”. The Demand for Arbitration futher alleges that our response to Hewitt’s December 31,
letter, while committing us to the relationship, reminded Hewitt that bringing the health plan information to us is one of the principal
responsibilities Hewitt has under the Agreement. In addition, the Demand for Arbitration states that, on March, 10, 2006, Hewitt
claimed that the December 31, 2005 letter invoked the right to terminate the Agreement, even though the December 31 letter makes no
reference to terminating the Agreement; moreover, on March 15, 2006, Hewitt administrators refused to continue to perform Hewitt’s
obligations under the Agreement. :

In the Demand for Arbitration, we claim, among other things, that Hewitt has willfully repudiated and breached the terms of the
Agreement by falsely contending that it had the right to terminate the Agreement based on our performance of the pilot services and
the Network Tag Services; by refusing to continue to perform under the Hewitt Agreement; and by falsely contending that we had
materially breached the Agreement with Hewitt had precluded us from providing services under the Agreement and our performance
had at all times been commendable. We are seeking $21 million in damages, plus costs.

Hewitt has not yet responded to the Demand for Arbitration. "

Indemnification of our Chief Executive Officer

In 2004, we provided indemnification to our Chief Executive Officer, Kerry R. Hicks, for legal fees totaling approximately $272,000
relating to litigation involving Mr. Hicks. We provided additional indemnification of approximately $461,000 during 2005. The
litigation' arose from loans that Mr. Hicks and three other- executive officers provided to us in December 1999 in the amount of
$3,350,000 (including $2,000,000 individually loaned by Mr. Hicks). These loans enabled us to purchase a minority interest in an
internet healthcare rating business that has become our current healthcare provider rating and advisory services business. Although
we were the majority owner of the business, we had agreed with the principal minority interest holder that if we failed to purchase the
holder’s interest by December 31, 1999, we would relinquish control and majority ownership to the holder. In March 2000, the
executive officers converted our obligations to them (including the $2,000,000 owed to Mr. Hicks) into our equity securities in order
to induce several private investors to invest an aggregate of $14,800,000 in our equity securities.

The executive officers personally borrowed money from our principal lending bank in order to fund their loans to us. In early 2001,
the bank claimed that Mr. Hicks was obligated to pay amounts owed to the bank by a former executive who was unable to fully repay
his loan; Mr. Hicks denied this obligation. In October 2002, the bank sold the note to an affiliate of a collection agéncy (the collection
agency and the affiliate are collectively referred to as “the collection agency”). Although the bank informed the collection agency in
July 2003 of the bank’s conclusion that Mr. Hicks was not obligated under the former executive’s promissory note issued to the bank,
the collection agency commenced litigation in September 2003 in federal court in Tennessee to collect the remaining balance of
approximately $350,000 on the note and named Mr. Hicks as a defendant. On motion by Mr. Hicks, the court action was stayed, and
Mr. Hicks commenced an arbitration proceeding against the collection agency in October 2003, secking an order that he had no
liability under the note and asserting claims for damages. The bank was added as a party in March 2004.

The bank repurchased the note from the collection agency in December 2003 and resold the note to another third party in February
2004, so that Mr. Hicks’ obligation to repay the note was no longer an issue.  The remaining claims included, among others, claims by
the bank against Mr. Hicks for costs and expenses of collection of the loan, claims by the collection agency against Mr.. Hicks for
abuse of process and tortious interference with the relationship between the bank and the collection agency and claims by Mr. Hicks
against the bank for breach of fiduciary duty and fraud, and against the collection agency for abuse of process and defamation.
Mr. Hicks also commenced litigation against the other parties, as well as two individuals affiliated with the collection agency (together
with the collection agency, the “collection agency parties”), based on similar claims. That case was removed to federal court by the
defendants. Mr. Hicks later filed an amended complaint against the collection agency parties in federal district court -for. abuse of
process, defamation and intentional infliction of emotional distress. The federal district court determined that Mr. Hicks’ claims
should be submitted to the arbitration proceeding, but in January 2005, the arbitrator stayed Mr. Hicks’ federal court claims and the
collection agency’s claims against Mr. Hicks for abuse of process and tortious interference until after consideration of the other
pending claims. An arbitration hearing was held in February 2005 on the other claims submitted by the parties. -

In April 2003, the arbitrator announced his determination. The arbitrator ruled that the collection agency was liable to Mr. Hicks in
the amount of $400,000 for emotional distress and other maladies as well as attorneys’ fees in the amount of $15,587 with interest as a
result of the collection agency’s abuse.of process in initiating the action in federal court in Tennessee. The arbitrator determined that
the bank had no liability. ' ' :
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Mr. Hicks has not been paid the arbitration award. The collection agency sought reconsideration of the ruling by the arbitrator, who
denied the request. Mr. Hicks filed a motion with the federal district court to confirm the arbitration award, and the court confirmed
the award on October 26, 2005. The collection agency filed a notice of appeal in connection with the federal district court’s
confirmation of the arbitration award entered in favor of Mr. Hicks. Counsel for Mr. Hicks has advised us that Mr. Hicks has filed a

motion to dismiss the notice of appeal because several claims remain unresolved by the court and the district court did not certify its
ruling for appeal.

The hearing on the remaining claims in the arbitration was held on February 28, 2006 through March 3, 2006. The arbitrator who
heard these claims died unexpectedly a few days after the arbitration hearing was complete and did not issue a ruling. A new

arbitrator has been appointed. It is anticipated that, during Apr1l 2006, the new arbitrator will set procedures under which the
remaining claims will be decided.

Our determination to indemnify Mr. Hicks was based on, among other things, the fact that the dispute related to Mr. Hicks’ efforts and
personal financial commitment to provide funds to us in December 1999, without which we likely would not have remained viable.
Mr. Hicks has advised us that he intends to reimburse us for all indemnification expenses we have incurred and continue to incur, from
the proceeds of any final award paid to him, net of any income taxées payable by him resulting from the award. -

By a letter to our Board of Directors dated February 13, 2006, one of the collection agency parties made allegations directed at us, Mr.
Hicks and the attorneys representing Mr. Hicks in the arbitration. The principal allegations appear to be that we, Mr. Hicks and the
attorneys conspired to enter into an illegal arrangement with an account officer of the bank whose loan was the initial subject of the
arbitration, without the bank’s knowledge that enabled us to indiréctly obtain funds from the bank and, in conspiracy with the late
Arbitrator, prevented the collection agency parties from reporting the alleged conduct to government authorities. The collection

' agency party threatened suit if it is not pa1d $10.3 million.

We beheve these allegations are absurd and completely without merlt To our knowledge the collection agency parties have not
sought to assert any such “claims” against us in the arbitration. We will vigorously contest any litigation that may be brought against
us by the collection agency parties. ;

We are subject to other legal proceedings and claims that arise in the ordinary' course of our business. In the opinion of management,
these actions are unlikely to materially affect our financial position.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders
Not applicable. . S v
Executive Officers of the Registrant

i

The following table sets forth certain information concerning the executive officers of the Company. The executive officers are
elected by the Board of D1rectors of the Company to serve for one year or until their successors are duly elected and qualified.

NAME ACE POSITION

Kerry R. Hicks ......... 46  President, Chief Executive Officer

1.D. Kleinke.-.... 44 Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors
David G. Hicks..... 48  Executive Vice President

Sarah Loughran:.......ccciiroierrorneencenecnrnnennann: 41 Executive Vice President

[y

Allen Dodge ........................................................... 38 Senior Vice President-Finance, Chief Financial Officer,
i v ‘ : Secretary and Treasurer -
[
KERRY R. HICKS, one of our founders, has served as our Chief Executive Officer and one of our directors since our inception in
1995. He has served as Chairman of the Board since December 2004. He also served as our President from our inception until

November 1999 and since March 2002.

J.D. KLEINKE has served as Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors since January 2005. He has been one of our directors since
April 2002. Mr. Kleinke is a part-time executive and, as Vice Chairman, he is responsible for assisting in setting our strategic direction
and cultivating new strategic partnerships. Mr. Kleinke has served as President and Chief Executwe officer for HSN, a privately held
health 1nformat10n technology development company, since Apr11 1998.

" DAVID G. HICKS has served as our Executive Vice President since November 1999. He was Senior Vice President of Information
Technology from May 1999 to November 1999 and Vice President of Management Informatlon Systems from March 1996 unt1l May
1999,
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SARAH LOUGHRAN has served us in several capacities since 1998, including as our Executive: Vrce( Presrdent since. July 2004 and
Semor Vice President — Provider Services from December 2001 to J uly 2004, . B B S ;

ALLEN DODGE has served as Senior Vice President:~ Fmance and Chref F1nanc1a1 Ofﬁcer since May 2001 He was. Vlce Presrdent
— Finance/Controller from March 2000 to.May 2001 and Corporate Controlier from September. 1997 to March 2000.. Mr Dodge is a
Certified Public Accountant. R

U, Loee S .
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PARTII . -,

Kerry R. Hicks and David G. Hicks are brothers. Lt T o e
Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

The followrng table sets forth the high and low “sale§' prices for our Common Stock for the quarters mdrcated as reported on the
Nasdaq Capital Market (smce June 16, 2005) and the OTC Bulletm Board (prror to June 16 2005)

g o HIGH - Low, Ce

Year Ended December 31, 2004 N

First QUATter.......ccovvenriloeerinns e ST e $ 18. $ .55 « -

Second Quarter .. : . 1.75 86. .,

Third Quarter ..... o180 1z ‘ ,

FOUrth QUATN..... ol CT 7325 180 S
YearEndedDecember 31,2005 . . . , i

FAFSE QUATTET oo evve e et ecessse e sase e e esemsesenseseerseens $ 510 $277

Second Quarter .. : : 1595 - 372

Third Quarter..... 5.50 3.25

- . Fourth Quarter.............cce.... et e ee e b beepees eennevteenrearrad - S 648 ¢ 320

We have never paid or declared any cash dividends and do not anticipate paying any cash dividends in the foreseeable future, We
currently intend to retain any future earnings for use in our business.

LR S

e Lo L

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

Statement of Operations Data

Year Ended December 31,
2008 2004 2003 2002 — . 2001 -
Ratings and advisory revenue $ 20,794,173 $ 14,536,304 $ 8,803,929 $ 5,091,891 $ 3,083,451
Physician practice service fees . R R T R e ]95 492 T 51025
D S o . R [ Sy NUTRENY TP . . . -
Income (loss) from operations 3,942,424 1,760,600 (1,275,775) (1 770 555) (7,620,773)
e o e
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of a L ST L . L . .
change in accounting principle . [ 4,139,853 1,782,143, (1,283,687) . . (562 482) , (7,367,243)°
Net income (loss) .S ‘ 4,139,853 1782143 . . MM ‘ MU) oL $_(7.367.243)
Net income (loss) per common share (basic) s 0 015 S 007 $ (005 S (0.05)(1) $ (0.30)
Weighted average number of common shares ‘ . i - . o . . ) - -
used in computation (basic) 127039057 23058173 - 26679467 ' 36.189.748 T 24399699 .
Net income (loss) per common share (dituted) ' $ 0.12 $A Q.Q—j . b - 005 po_- (0.(55)(1) B QQ@;
Weighted average number of common ‘ ‘
shares and common share equivalents I L C o . Lo /
used in computation (diluted) . ce .. 34833521 . 33.031.087 AZQ.QZ_Q,&QZ:_.' , 36,189,748 - v 24,399,609

(1) - Net loss for the year ended’ December 31 2002 mcludes an 1mpa1rment charge of approxrmately $1.1 mllhon related to a
cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle due to our adoptron of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142,
Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. In addition, net loss also reflects an income tax benefit of approxrmately $1 0 million related to
thecarrybackofour2001 tax loss. . L e D o e

[N
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Balance Sheet Data ; .
DECEMBER 31,2005 DECEMBER 31,2004 DECEMBER 31,2003 DECEMBER 31,2002 ~DECEMBER 31, 2001

Working capital (defc1t) 5,024,057 - - 96,190 - (1,820,137) 44,207 161,324
Total assets T23,844473 0 12;931,127‘ . : 8,821,239 . 7,117,551 ' 7,747,904

Total long-term debt . 52541 . . —-r e Ce- - -

ITEM 7. Management s Discussion and Analysrs of Frnancral Condmon and Results of Operations

\ :
]
. ",’A’.

Introductory Commentary -
In evaluating our financial results and financial Conditi’on, manage‘ment has focused principally on the following:

Revenue Growth and Client Retention — We believe these are key factors affecting both our results of operations and our cash flow
from operations. For the year ended December 31, 2005, our increased revenues as compared to the same period of 2004 reflected our
success in séveral product areas. We continued addrng new hosprtal customers to our Strategrc Quality Partnership (SQP) (formerly,
Distinguished Hospital Program), Strategic Quality Initiative (SQI) and Quality Assessment and Improvement (QAI) programs. In
addition, we continued to increase sales through the drstr1but10n of our quahty mformatron in our Quahty Ratmgs Suite and Healthcare
Quahty Reports for Consumers
As our base of hospital clients grows, one of our principal objectives is to achieve a high rate of retention of these clients. We believe
one of the obstacles to maintaining high retention rates for our marketing clients is the fact that clients may have lost their high ratings
by a given contract anniversary date. In addition, for our contracts with hospitals that have also been awarded an overall hospital
designation, such as our Distinguished Hospital Award for Clinical Excellence™, we have found that in many “cases, the hospitals
terminate their contract with us if they lose the overall hospital designation. For example, hospitals that contract with us for the SQP
program typically have been awarded our Distinguished Hospital Award for Clinical Excellence. In addition, the contracts give them
the ability to utilize any additional marketmg messages they have for our individual service lines as well. However, if the hospital
does not achieve the Distinguished’ Hosprtal Award for Clinical Excellence each year of their agreement they may not place as much
value on the individual service hne messages’ and, therefore, terminate their agreement with us. We have continued to enhance the
services provided in our agreements as yyell as add s servrce line'awards that are designed to increase our ability to retain these clients.
For the year ended December 31, 2005, we retained, or signed hew agreementslwith contracts representing approximately 68% of the
annual contract value of hospitals whose contracts had first or second year anniversary dates. This percentage was substantially the
same whether the hospitals contracted with us for-marketing sérvices or quality improvement services. In general, our rate of re-
signing expired contracts is lower, especially with respect to our quality improvement clients, than our retention rate with respect to
contracts that have a cancellation option on the first or second annrversary dates. Some of our quality improvement clients view a
three-year term as the culmrnatron of their improvement efforts rather than a starting point. The increase in our contract prices over
the last several years has caused some hosp1tals to decline renewal as well. Because we give our clients a fixed annual contract price
during their three-year term, our price’ pomts for renewals ‘may have increased significantly at the expiration of the contract. In
addition, prior to January 2004, for clients that signed SQI contracts with us, we agreed not to sign similar agreements with a specified
number of hospitals in close proximity to the client hospital. Begmnrng in January 2004, we no longer offer this type of exclusivity
under our hospltal contracts. For hospitals that 51gned agreements with us during 2003, we 'will continue to honor the exclusivity
provrsrons in their contracts solely for the remaining term of the ' agreement As our agreements are typically three years (subject to a
cancellation right that may be exercised by either the client or us on each annual anmversary date), we antrclpate that al] exclusivity
provisions will explre by the end of 2006 !
We typically receivée a non-refundable payment for the first year 'of the contract term (which as noted above is typically three years,
subject to a cancellation right that may be’ exercised by eithef ‘the client or us on each annual anniversary date) upon contract
execution. Because we typrcally recerve payment in advance for each year of the term of these agreements, if we cannot continue to
attract new hospital clients and retam a srgmﬁcant portron of our current chents our cash ﬂow from operatrons could be adversely
affected.

Income Taxes — During the six month perlod ended June 30, 2005 we reversed by $1.5 million, the valuation allowance for deferred
tax assets previously reflected in our financial statements The valuation allowance resulted from uncertainty regarding our ability to
realize the benefits of the related deferred tax assets. In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 109,
Accounting for Income Taxes, we assessed thie continuing need for the valuation allowance and concluded that, consistent with criteria
we established in 2004, the valuation allowance was no longer required. As a result, our effective income tax rate during 2005 was
approximately .2%. In addition, cash provided by operations for the year ended December 31, 2005 includes a reduction in income
taxes payable of approximately $1.2 million related to certain émployee stock option transactions. During 2006, we anticipate an
effective income tax rate of approximately 42%. jf




Critical Accounting Estimates

In preparing our financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that, among other things, affect
the reported amounts of assets, revenues and expenses. These estimates and assumptions are most significant where they involve
levels of subjectivity and judgment necessary to account for highly uncertain matters or matters susceptible to change, and where they
can have a material impact on our financial condition and operating performance. We discuss below the most significant estimates
and related assumptions used in the preparation of our financial statements, namely those relating to our income tax valuation
allowance. If actual results were to differ materially from the estimates made, the reported results could be materially affected. Our
senior management has discussed the application of these estimates with our Audit Committee.

Income Tax Valuation Allowance

Until June 30, 2005,. we maintained a full valuanon allowance against our net deferred tax asset of approximately $1.5 million.
The valuation allowance resulted from uncertainty regarding our ability to produce sufficient taxable income in future periods
necessary to realize the benefits of the related deferred tax assets. In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes, we assessed the continuing need for the valuation allowance and concluded that once we had
achieved at least six quarters of net income before tax and cumulative net income before tax during the most recent twelve quarters,
we could reverse the valuation allowance. During the second quarter of 2005, we met these criteria and determined that the valuation
allowance was no longer required. )

REVENUE AND EXPENSE COMPONENTS
The following descriptions of .the components of revenues and expenses apply to the comparison of results of operations.

Ratings and aa’vzsory revenue. We currently operate in one business segment. We provide proprletary, objective healthcare provider
ratings and advisory services to our clients. We generate revenue by providing our clients with information and other assistance that
enables them to measure, assess, enhance and market healthcare quality, Our target clients include hospitals, employers, benefits
consulting firms, payers, insurance companies and consumers. We typ1cally receive a non-refundable payment at the begmmng of
each year of the contract term (which is typically three years, subject to a cancellation right by either the client or us, on each annual
anniversary date). We record the cash payment as deferred revenue that is then amortized to revenue on a straight- -line basis over the
respective year of the term. Certain of our products represent a one-time delivery of data. For these arrangements, we recognize
revenue at the time that the data is delivered. ' .

Cost of ratings and advisory revenue. Cost of ratlngs and adv1sory revenue consxsts pr1rnar11y of the costs associated with the delivery
of services related to our SQI, SQP and QAI programs, as well as- the costs incurred to acquire the data utilized in connection with
these and other services such as our Quality Ratings Suite products. The cost of delivery of services relates primarily to the client
consultants and support staff that provide our services. :

Sales and marketing costs. Sales and marketing costs include salaries, wages and commission expenses related to our sales efforts, as
well as other direct sales and marketing costs. For our SQP, SQI and QAI agreements we pay our sales personnel commissions as
we receive payment from our hospital clients. We typically receive a non-refundable payment for the first year (and subsequent years
on each anniversary date) of the three-yéar contract term. In addition, we record the commission expense in the period it is earned,
which is typically upon contract execution for the first year of the agreement and on each anniversary date for clients that do not
cancel in the second or third year of the contract term. We record the commission expense in this manner because once a contract is
signed, the salesperson has no remaining obligations to perform during the agreement in order to earn the commission.

Product development costs. We incur product development costs related fo the development and support of our website and, the
development of applications to support data compilation and extraction for our consulting services. These costs are expensed as
incurred uniess the criteria for capitalization under SOP 98-1 are met.

General and administrative expenses. General and administrative expenses consist primarily of salaries, employee benefits and other
expenses for employees that support our infrastructure such as [finance and accounting personnel, certain information technology
employees and some of our support staff, facility costs, professronal fees and insurance costs.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Ratings and Advisory Revenue Overview ,
. . I:
Year ended Year ended Year ended

- Product Area " December 31, 2005 December 31, 2004 December 31, 2003
! I

Marketing services to ‘ '
hospitals Co
(SQP and SQI products) $ 12,341,196 $ - 8763218 $ -~ 6,366,530
Quality improvement ‘ ‘
services to hospitals : ‘
(QAI products) \ . D 2,442,338 : 2,043,619 © 964,674
Sales of quality ‘ o : ‘ i '
information to employers, !
consumers and others
(QRS and Healthcare - o i ‘ ‘ :
Quality Reports) 5,741,471 : 3,516,450 : 1,262,255
Consultant reimbursed ! i
travel 1 ‘ 269,168 , 213,017 . 170,220
Other - ’ - 40,2&‘
Total 8 - 20794173 $ . 14,536,304 $- 8.803.929

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005 COMPARED TO YEAR;ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

Ratings and advisory revenue. For the year ended December 31, 2005 ratings and advisory revenue was approximately $20.8 million,
an increase of $6.3 million from ratings and advisory revenue of $14.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2004, For the year
ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, approximately 59% and 60% of our ratings and advisory revenue was derived from our
marketing services to hospitals. Revenues from this product area increased by approximately $3.6 million to $12.3 million for the
year ended December 31, 2005. This increase is principally due to the addition of new clients, as well as our continued success selling
additional services to existing hospitals;, or “upsells.” For 2005, upsells accounted for approximatély 38% of total new contracted
sales. The addition of two additional marketing services sales personnel contributed to our sales growth. In addition, individuals
hired in recent years have continued to increase their sales proﬁc1ency In addition, approximately 12% of our ratings and advisory
revenue was derived from the sale of our quality improvement services to hospitals for the year ended December 31, 2005 compared
to 14% for the same period of 2004. Sales of our quality information totaled 28% of our ratings and advisory revenue for the year
ended December 31, 2005 compared to 24% for the same period of 2004.  Strong growth in our direct sales of quality reports to
consumers via our website and our relationship ‘with Hewitt Assotiates, through whom we provide our quality information to over 125
of the Fortune 1000 companies, was a pr1n01pa1 reason for the i 1ncrease in sales of our quality information.

Cost of ratings and advisory revenue. For the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, cost of ratings and advisory revenue was
approximately $3.2 million and $2.5 million, respectively, or approxrmately 15% and 17% of ratings and advisory revenue. The slight
decrease in cost of ratings and advisory revenue as a percentage of ratings and advisory revenue is due to the fact that the majority of
our revenue growth was from our marketmg services to hospital$ and sales of quality information, and increased sales of these items
do not entail a substantial amount of incremental cost. In addition, one of the significant components of cost of ratings and advisory
revenue is our cost to acquire data, which has remained relatively fixed for the last year. Moreover, sales of our healthcare quality
reports do not require any commission costs as these are sold onhne directly to consumers. Costs related to our healthcare quality
reports are principally related to paymerits to internet search engines for placement on the internet, as well as fees paid to a consultant.
The fees we pay to a consultant are variable based upon the revenue generated from the sale of our healthcare quality reports to
consumers, less certain expenses, and are subject to a monthly cap These costs are included in sales and marketing expense in our
statements of operations. «

Sales and marketing costs. Sales and marketmg costs for the year ended December 31, 2005 1ncreased to approximately $5.8 million
from $4.9 million for the same period of 2004. As a percentage of ratings and advisory revenue, sales and marketing costs were 28%
and 34%, in 2005 and 2004, respectively. The decrease as a percentage of ratings and advisory revenue is primarily due to our
ongoing base of business. We pay a lesser percentage of commissions to our sales group upon retention of contracts with hospitals
than we pay with respect to new contracts. Sales and marketing costs also include payments to internet search engines for placement
on the intérnet. This expense was approx1mate1y $865,000 and $757 000 in 2005 and 2004, respectively.
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Product development costs. Product development costs increased to approximately $3.0 million from $2.0 million for the same period
of 2004. This increase is principally due to additional personnel hired to support our product development efforts, including both the
improvement of existing products as well as the development of new product offerings, including costs incurred with respect to our
agreement with Hewitt that were properly not capitalized. In addition, we continue to invest in the improvement of our physician data.
The physician data we maintain relates to over 600,000 physicians. This data does not identify physicians by a unique physician
identifier (such as a social security number for an individual). Therefore, in order to properly match the various data points that we
maintain to the appropriate physician, we must conduct a robust matching process. We continue to acquire new physician data and
refine our matching process to improve the accuracy of our data.

General and administrative expenses. For the year ended December 31 2005, general and administrative expenses were
approximately $4.9 million, an increase of approximately $1.6.million from' general and administrative expenses of approximately
$3.3 million for the same period of 2004. The increase in general and administrative expenses is due to various items including an
increase in legal fees of approximately $400,000, which includes indemnification expenses with respect to our chief executive officer
(described in Note 15 to the financial statements), additional accounting fees of approximately $170,000 related principally to an
outside consultant retained to assist us with respect to our Sarbanes-Oxley compliance efforts, additional office rent of approximately
$160,000 related to our move into a office location in Golden, Colorado, increased investor relations fees of approximately, $130,000
(including $50,000 with respect to our NASDAQ Capital Market listing fee) and other items, including additional personnel and
depreciation expenses related to our growth and move into our expanded office space during 2005.

Interest expense

For the year ended December 31, 2005, we incurred interest expense of approximately $800 w1th respect to interest paid on capltal
lease obligations for the security system lease at our facility in Golden.

Interest income

We maintain cash in an.overnight investment account that includes short-term US. government obligations with maturities not
exceeding three months and investments in a short-term investment account that includes U.S. government and government agency
debt securities with original maturities not exceeding three months. As of December 31, 2005, our total investment in these accounts
amounted to approximately $6.1 million. This amount is included within the cash and cash equivalent line item of our balance sheet.
For the twelve months ended December 31, 2003, interest earned on this account was $177,899. As of December 31, 2005, we also
maintained short-term investments in U.S. government and government}agency debt securities with maturities of greater than 90 days
and less than 180 days. As of December 31;. 2005, our investment in these securities totaled approximately $2.0 million and is
included within the short-term-investment line item of our balance sheet. For the twelve months ended December 31, 2005, interest
earned on investments in this account was $27,225. _ Any decrease.in interest rates in elther of these investment accounts would not
have a material impact on our financial position. . ‘ »

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 COMPARED TO YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

Ratings and advisory revenue. For the year ended December 31, 2004, ratings and advisory revenue was approximately $14.5 million,
an increase of $5.7 million from ratings and advisory revenue of $8.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2003. For the year
ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, approx1mately 60% and 72% of our ratings and advisory revenue was derived from our
marketing services to hospitals. Although revenue from our marketmg services declined as a percentage of total revenue from 2003 to
2004, revenues from this product area increased by approximately $2.4 million to $8.8 rmlhon for the year ended December 31, 2004.
This increase is principaily due to the addition of new clients in 2004. We continued to add clients for our existing service lines as
well as our Distinguished Hospital Awards for Clinical Excellence and Patient Safety. In addition, approximately 14% of our ratings
and advisory revenue was derived from the sale of our quahty improvement services to hospitals for the year ended December 31,
2004 compared to 11% for.the same period of 2003. Sales of our quality information totaled 24% of our ratings and advisory revenue
for the year ended December 31, 2004 compared to 14% for the same period of 2003. Strong growth.in our direct sales of quality
reports to consumers via our website and our relationship with Hew1tt Associates; through whom we provide our quality 1nformat10n
to over 125 of the Fortune 1000 companies, was a principal reason for the increase in sales of our quality information.

Cost of ratings and advisory revenue. For the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, cost of ratings and advisory revenue was
approximately $2.5 million and $2. 0 million, respectively, or approx1mately 17% and 22% of ratings and advisory revenue. The
decrease in cost of ratings and advisory revenue as a percentage of ratings and advisory revenue is due to the fact that our revenue
growth was principally from our marketing services to hospitals and sales of quality information, and increased sales of these items do
not entail a substantial amount of incremental cost. In addition, one of the significant components of cost of ratings and advisory
revenue is our cost to acquire data, which remained relanvely fixed in 2004 compared 10.2003. Moreover, our sales of our healthcare
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quality reports do not require any commission costs as these are sold online directly to consumers. Costs related to our healthcare
quality reports are principally related to payments to internet search engines for placement on the internet, as well as fees paid to a
consultant. The fees we pay to a consultant are variable based.upon the revenue generated from the sale of our healthcare quality
reports to consumers, less certain expenses, and are subject to a monthly cap. These costs are 1ncluded in sales and marketing expense
in our consolidated statements of operations. »

Sales and marketing costs for the year ended December 31, 2004 increased to approximately $4.9 million from $3.4 million for the
same period of 2003. As a percentage of ratings and advisory revenue, sales and marketing costs were 34% and 38%, respectively.
The decrease as a percentage of ratings and advisory revenue is primarily due to our increased existing base of business. We pay a
lesser percentage of commissions to our sales group upon renewals of contracts with hospitals than we pay with respect to new
contracts. :

General and administrative expenses. For the year ended December 31, 2004, general and administrative expenses were
approximately $3.3 million, an increase of approxrmately $505, OOO from general and administrative expenses of approximately $2.8
million for the same period of 2003. The increase in general and administrative expenses is due to various items including an
increase in professional fees related to our internal control efforts with respect to Sarbanes-Oxley, an increase in legal fees,
indemnification expenses (described in Note 15 to the financial statements included in this report), additional office rent related to an
increase in office space of approximately 3,000 square feet dur1ng 2004 and other items related to our growth during 2004.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

As of December 31, 2005, we had working capital of approximately $5.0 million, an increase of $4.9 million from our working capital
of approximately $96,000 as of December 31, 2004. Included in current liabilities as of December 31, 2005 is $11.7 million in
deferred revenue, principally representing contract payments for future marketing and quality improvement: services to hospitals.
These amounts will be reflected in revenue upon provision of the related services. For the year ended December 31, 2005, cash flow
provided by operations was approximately $6.6 million compared to cash provided by operations of approximately $2.8 million for
the same period of 2004. In addition to the positive effect of our net income, cash provided by operations for the year ended
December 31, 2005 includes a reduction in income taxes payable of approxrmately $1.2 million related to certain employee stock
option transactions.

During the year ended December, 31, 2005 the number of our common shares issued increased by approximately 2.8 million shares
due to the exercise of stock options and warrants. We received approximately $713,000 in cash from this exercise of stock options
and warrants, which represents the exercise price of these instruments. As of December 31, 2005, we have outstanding options to
purchase approximately 8.0 million shares of our common stock, the majority of which have exercise prices of less than $2.00 per
share. Therefore, we anticipate that additional options will be exercrsed

Through February 13, 2006, we had a $1.0 million line of credit airrangernent (the ‘ngreement”) with Silicon Valley Bank.

In February 2006, our line of credit arrangement with Silicon Valley Bank expired. We did not renew the arrangement, although we
had outstanding a standby letter of credit drawn on the bank in the amount of approximately $500,000, which was provided in January
2005 in connection with our entry into, a lease for our headquarters office in Golden, Colorado. We anticipate that our $500,000
standby letter of credit with Silicon Valley Bank will be secured as a compensating balance against the cash and cash equivalents we
maintain with Silicon Valley Bank. ,‘ ‘ ) .

]
13 *

During the year ended December 31, 2005, we incurred approxrmately $1.6 million in capital expendrtures These expenditures
included the following: leasehold improvements and furniture for our new office space (approximately $600,000), software
development costs capitalized with respect to our application to deliver data to Hewitt’s clients, as described further in Note 5 to the
financial statements included in this report (approxrmately $400, 000) and server equipment, computers and other capital items for new
employees (approximately $600,000). In addition, we paid $200 000 to acquire certam intangible assets (survey tools as well as a
survey builder application) from the Foundation for Accountability, a not-for-profit organization. These tools are intended to enable
consumers to compare their healthcare experience to evidence-based guidelines for specific conditions. In addition to the capital
expenditures related to our new facility, we anticipate incurring certam caprtal expenditures durmg 2006, prrmarlly to upgrade some of
our information technology hardware and software.

We ant1c1pate that we have sufﬁc1ent funds available to support ongoing operat1ons at their current level. As noted above, upon
execution of our SQI, SQP and QAI agreements we typically receive a non-refundable payment for the first year of the contract term
(which is typically three years, subJect to- a cancellation right that may be exercised by either the client or us on each annual
ann1versary date). We record the cash payment as deferred revenye, Wh1ch is a current llabrhty on our consohdated balance sheet that

¥
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is then amortized to revenue over the first year of the term. Annual renewal payments, which are made in advance of the year to
which the payment relates, are treated in the same manner during each of the following two years. As a result, our operating cash flow.
is substantially dependent upon our ability to continue to sign new agreements, as well as continue to maintain a high rate of client
retention. Our current operating plan includes growth in new sales from these agreements. A srgmﬁcant failure to achreve sales
targets in the plan would have a material negative impact on our financial position and cash flow.

The followmg tab]e sets forth our contractual obhgatrons as of December 31, 2005

Payments Due by Period

Less than 1 ‘ . More than
Total year 2-3 years 4-5 years 5 years

Contractual Obligations )
. Capital Lease Obligations $§ 25866 $ 5,748 $‘ 11,496 $ 8,622 $ -
Operating Lease Obligations 2,009,629 475,433 898,047 636,149 ‘ -

Employee Contracts 530,349 530,349 - - -
_ Purchase Obligations 1.047.109 507.534 539,575 - -
Total $3.612.953 $1.519.064 $1.449.118 § 644771 $ -

Operating lease obligations relate principally to our office space lease.
RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Rental Costs During a Construction Period

In October 2005, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued FSP FAS 13-1, Accountmg for Rental Costs Incurred during a
Construction Period (FSP FAS 13-1). Based on the provrsrons of FSP FAS 13-1, lessees are not permitted to capitalize rental costs
associated with either ground or building operating leases that aré allocated to the construction period. These costs must be
recognized as rental expense and included in income from continuing operations. FSP FAS 13-1 is effective for us begmmng January
-1, 2006.

As described in Note 13 to our financial statements included in this report, during 2005 we entered into a lease agreement for a new
location in Golden, Colorado effective in February 2005. During the construction period, ‘prior to our occupancy, we capitalized
approximately one and a half months of construction period rent, including common area maintenance charges, totaling approximately
$65,000. This amount is being amortized to rent expense over the sixty-three month term of our lease. FSP FAS 13-1 permits, but
does not require, retrospective application of this position. Based on the provision of FSP FAS 13-1 if we enter into any new leases in
the future, we will no longer capitalize any construction period rent.

Share-Based Payments

In December 2004, the Financial Aecountmg Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R),
Share-Based Payment (SFAS 123(R)). SFAS 123(R) requlres employee stock options and rights to purchase shares under stock
participation plans to be accounted for under the fair value method, and eliminates the ability to account for these instruments under
the intrinsic value method prescribed by Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 25, and allowed under the original
provisions of SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation (SFAS 123). SFAS 123(R) requires the use of an option
prlcmg model for estlmatmg fair value, which is amortized to expense over the service perlods SFAS 123(R) is effective for public
companies for fiscal years that begin after June 15, 2005.

In March 2003, the Securities and Exchange Commission issued Staff Accounting Bulletini (SAB) 107. Share-Based Payment, to
provide additional guidance to public companies in applying the provisions of SFAS 123(R). During 2005, the FASB issued three
FASB Staff Positions (FSP): FSP FAS 123(R)-1, Classification and Measurement of F reestaniding Financial Instruments Originally
Issued in Exchange for Employee Services under FASB Statement No. 123(R), FSP FAS 123(R)-2, Practical Accommodation to the
Application of Grant Date as Defined in FASB Statement No. 123(R), and FSP FAS 123(R)-3, Transition Election Related to
Accounting for the Tax Effects of Share-Based Payment Awards. We will adopt the provisions of SAB 107 in conjunction with the
adoption of SFAS 123(R) and also consider the guidance provided in the FSPs as we consider the effect that SFAS 123(R) will have
on our results of operatlons frnancral position and cash. flows. :

We account for our stock- based compensatlon arrangements using the intrinsic value method under the prov1srons of APB 25 ana
related interpretations. Under SFAS 123(R), we must determine the appropriate fair value model to be used for valuing share-based
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payments, the amortization method for compensation cost and the transition method to be used at the date of adoption. The transition
methods include modified prospective.and modified retrospective adoption options. Under the modified retrospective option, prior
periods may be restated either as of thé; beginning of the year of adoption or for all periods presented. The modified prospective
method requires that compensation expense be recorded for all previously unvested stock options and restricted stock as they vest, and
for all awards issued or modified beginning on January 1, 2006. .
We have determined that we will adopt the modified prospective transition method. With respect to unvested options that were
granted during 2005 and prior years, we will recognize compensation cost as expense based on the grant date fair value of those
awards calculated using the Black Scholes option pricing model previously utilized under SFAS 123 for proforma disclosures.

We expect to record additional compensatlon expense related to'our adoption of SFAS 123(R) with respect to the stock options that
are outstanding as of December 31, 2005 of approximately $675,000 for the year ended December 31, 2006. Depending upon the
amount of any share-based payments granted during 2006, this amount may not be indicative of the actual expense we incur during
2006. : :

'
B

Accounting Changes and Error Corrections ' S
In May 2005, the Financial Accounting| Standards Board issued.Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 154, Accounting
Changes and Error Corrections, a replacement of APB Opinion No. 20 and FASB Statement No. 3.(SFAS 154). SFAS 154 replaces
APB Opinion No. 20, Accounting Changes, and FASB Statement No. 3, Reporting Accounting Changes in Interim Financial
Statements, and changes the requirements for the accounting for and reporting of a change in accounting principle. SFAS 154 applies
to all voluntary changes in accounting prmc1p1e and, changes requn'ed by an accoummg pronouncement in the unusual instance that

the pronouncement does not include spemﬁc transition prov151ons

SFAS. 154 tequires retrospective applicgtion to prior periods’ ﬁnancial statements of ‘changes in accounting principle, unless it is
impracticable to determine either the period-specific effects or the cumulative effect of the change. SFAS 154 is effective for us
beginning January 1, 2006. We do not believe that the adoptlon of SFAS 154 will have a significant effect on our financial
statements. \

Itern 7a. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure about Market Risk

We maintain cash in an overnight investment account that includes short-term U.S. government obligations with maturities not
exceeding three months and investments in a short-term investment account that includes U.S. government and governmient agency
debt securities with original maturities not exceeding three months. As of December 31, 2005, our total investment in these accounts
amounted to approximately $6.1 million. This amount is included within the cash and cash equivalent line item of our balance sheet.
For the twelve months ended December 31, 2005, interest earned on this account was $177,899. As of December 31, 2005, we also
maintained short-term investments in U.S. government and government agency debt securities with maturities of greater than 90 days
and less than 180 days. As of December 31, 2005, our investment in these securities totaled approximately $2.0 million and is
included within the short-term investment line item of our balance sheet. For the twelve months ended December 31, 2005, interest
earned on investments in this account was $27,225. "Any decrease in interest rates in either of these investment accounts would not
have a material impact on our financial position. ¢
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Report of Independent Reglstered Pubhc Accountmg Firm

Boa:d of Directors and Stockholders of Health Grades, Inc. +~~ - : ‘ ‘ '

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Health Grades, Inc. (a Delaware corporation) as of December 31, 2005 and
2004, and the related.statements of operations, stockholders’. equity, and.cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2005. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company S management Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. -

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were. we engaged to- perform an audit of its internal control over
financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluatmg the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our oplmon

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Health
Grades, Inc. as.of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2005, in conformity with accounting principles generally-accepted in the United States of America.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose: of forming an opinion on the basic. financial statements taken as a whole. Schedule 11 is
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. This schedule has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. ‘

/s/ GRANT THORNTON'LLP

Denver, Colorado ’ o e P .
March 9, 2006 - : -
(expect for Note 19, as to which
the date is March 28, 2006) -
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Health Grades, Inc.

Balance Sheets

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments
Accounts receivable, net
Prepaid expenses and other
Deferred income taxes
Total current assets

Property and equipment, net
Intangible assets, net
Goodwill

Deferred income taxes '
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Accounts payable ‘

Accrued payroll, incentive compensation and related expenses
Accrued expenses

Current portion of capital lease obligations

Current portion of deferred rent

Deferred revenue

Income taxes payable

Total current liabilities |

Long-term portion of cai)iml lease obligaﬁons
Long-term portion of deferred rent
Total Liabilities

Commitments and contingencies

Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $0.001 par value, 2,000,000 sha:es authonzed
no shares issued or outstanding -
Common stock, $0.001 par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized,
and 47,674,779 and 44,880,176 sha:es issued in 2005 and
2004, respectwe]y
Additional paid-in capital .
Accumulated deficit '
Treasury stock, 19,563,390 shares
Total stockholders' equity

i

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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DECEMBER 31

2005 2004
$ 0682106 S 6,153,862
1,988,154 -
5,620,736 3,034,375
562,540 253,839
1.080.562 -
18,934,098 9,442,076
1,595,065 382,870
o 177,729 -
3,106,181 3,106,181
31,400 -
$ 23844473 1 12
$ 278912 S 44,035
1,525,844 . 1178581
275,865 322,777
1,310 -
70,263 -
11,742,827 7,729,195
15.020 71,298
13,910,041 9,345,886
5,254 -
311.599
14,226,894 9,345,836
47,674 44,880
91,984,099 90,094,408
(68,646,614) (72,786,467)
_ (13.767.580) (13.767.580)
9.617.579 3585241
$ 12931.127

$_ 23844473




Health Grades, Inc.
Statements of Operations

Years ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003
Revenue: ' : ‘
Ratings and advisory revenue $ 20,794,173 $ 14,536,304 $ 8,803,929
Other . 13,333 1,447 1,551
) . : 20.807.506 14,537,751 - 8.805.480
Expenses: : o
Cost of ratings and advisory revenue 3,168.668 2,488,202 1.963.949 .
Gross margin L 17,638,838 12,049,549 6,841,531 -
Operating expenses: o : S
Sales and marketing 5,801,590 4,932,210 3,357,874
Product development 3,035,728 2,017,441 1,433,965
Litigation settlement - - 491,000
General and administrative ' 4,859,096 3,339,298 2,834,467 .
Income (loss) from operations . .1 3,942,424 1,760,600 . . - (1,275,775) .-
Other:
Other o . 1,405 o ' -
Interest income Lo 205,124 21,543 7,393
Interest expense . ‘ : ‘ (763) = (15.305).
Income (loss) before income taxes ’ 4,148,190 1,782,143 (1,283,687)
Income tax expense 8.337). et - -
Net income (loss) o § 4139853 $ 1782143 $ (1.283687)
Net income (loss) per common share (basic) 3 015 $ 007 § (0.05)
Weighted average number of common shares ‘
used in computation (basic) 27,039,057 25,058,173 ..26.679.467
Net income (loss) per common share (diluted) $ 012 § 005 8 (0.05)
Weighted average number of common shares : . T
-used in computation (diluted) 34.833,52 33,031,087 26.679.467

See accompanying notes to financial statements. .




Statements of St%)ckholders' Equity

December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

i
R

Health G:Tades, Inc.

Years ended

COMMON STOCK ADDITIONAL o
$0.001 PAR VALUE . PAID-IN ACCUMULATED TREASURY

' SHARES AMOUNT CAPITAL . DEFICIT STOCK _ TOTAL
Balance at January 1, 2003 43,965,706 43.966 89,762.836 _(73.284.923)  _(13.267.580) 3,254,299

12,004,333 shares acquired as treasury . ,
stock . - -- -~ (500,000} (500,000)
Option grants to consultant - = 42,499 - - 42,499
Employee stock option exercise 86,447 86 9,604 - 9,690
Net loss o - e -~ (1.283.687) : - (1,283,687)
Balance at December 31, 2003 44,052,153 44.05‘2 89,814,939 - (74.568.610) (13,767,580 1,522,801

! : ; .
Option grants to consultant ' - L8 157,500 - - 157,500
- Employee stock option exercise ‘ 828,023 828 121,969 - 122,797
Net income R t- - 1,782,143 1,782,143
Balance at Decémber 31, 2004 44,880,176 $44.880 $90,094.408 ' '$ (72,786.467) $ (13.767.580) $- 3.585.241
Option grants to consultant " - - 24,311 - . 24,311
Employee stock option exercise ! 2,078,020 2,078 624,215 - - 626,293
Stock warrant exercise L ! 716,583 716 85,978 - - 86,694
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options 1,155,187 - - 1,155,187
Net income ; -- - - 4,139.853 - 4,139,853
Balance at December 31, 2005 ' 47.674779 $91.984.099 $._(68,646.614) $ 9617579

See accompanying notes to financial statements.




Health Grades, Inc.

Statements of Cash Flows !

Years ended December 31,

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income (loss) !
Adjustments 1o reconcile net income (loss) to net
cash provided by operating activities: .
" Depreciation and amortization
Bad debt expense
Loss (gain) on disposal of assets
*Non-cash consulting expense related to non-employee
stock options .
Tax benefit from stock’ opuon exercises
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable, net
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Deferred income taxes
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll, incentive compensauon
and related expenses
Income taxes payable
Deferred revenue
Deferred rent
Net cash provided by operating activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES *

Purchases of property and equipment

Acquisitions of intangible assets

Purchases of held-to-maturity investments

Sale of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from sale or maturity of held-to-maturity investments
Net cash used in investing activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments under capital lease obligation

Principal repayments on note payable
Purchases of treasury stock

Proceeds from note payable

Exercise of common stock options and warrants

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents )
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Interest paid
Income tax paid

NON CASH FINANCING AND INVESTING ACTIVITY
Property, plant and equipment acquired with capital lease
Property, plant and equipment acquired in accounts payable

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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2005 2004 2003
$ 4,139.853 ' $ 1,782,143 $ (1,283,687
393,835 146,051 - 98,006
20,000 3,569 11,667
(1,405) 7,146 (75)
24,311 157,500 42,499
1,155,187 - -
(2,606,361) (1,349,609 (1,024,489)
(308,701) (22.999) 54,058
(1,111.962) -
187,965 75315 153,367
347,263 30,420 751,387
(56,278) (2,045) (3,380)
4,013,632 1,943,758 2,533,812
381862 - -
6,579.201 2,771,249 1,333,165
(1,548,541) (300,156) (230,852)
(235,230) g g
(2,588,154) - -
8,950 847 75
600,000 . =
(3.762,975) (299,300) (230,777
(969) - -
- - (500,000)
- - (500,000)
- - 500,000
712,987 122,797 9.690
712,018 122,797 (490310)
3,528,244 2,594,737 612,078
6.153.862 3,559.125 2.947.047
$ 0682106 $ 6153862 $__3.559.125
$ 763 $ - s 15.305
S 21390 $ 2045 S 3380
$ 753§ ~- 8 -
$ 65054 $ 14710 § 51,870




Health Grades Inc.
‘ . Notes to Fmanc1al Statements
a December 31 2005 and 2004
1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

Health Grades, Inc. (“HealthGrades”) prov1des proprietary, obJectlve healthcare prov1der ratings and advisory services. Our ratings
address hospitals, nursing homes and home health agencies. , We provide our clients with healthcare information, including
information relating to quality of service and detailed profile information on physicians, that enables them to measure, assess, enhance
and market healthcare quality. Our clients include hospitals, employers, benefits consulting firms, payers, insurance companies and
consumers. oo i

We offer services to hospitals that are either attempting to communicate their clinical -excellence to their internal staff, consumers and
physicians or.are working to improve quality. For hospitals that ‘have received high ratings, we offer the opportunity to license our
ratings and trademarks and provide assistance in their marketing! programs at an institutional level (e.g., hospital clinical excellence
and exceptional experience regarding the overall number and type of patient safety incidents within a hospital) at a service line level
(e.g. cardiac, pulmonary, vascular, etc.) and at a medical issue level (e.g., coronary bypass surgery, community acquired pneumonia,
valve replacement surgery, etc.). We also offer physician-led quality improvement consulting ‘engagements ‘and other quality
improvement analys1s and services for any hospitals that are seeking to enhance quahty
v ' .

In add1t1on, we prov1de basic and detailed profile information on a variety of prov,lders,,and facilities. We make this information
available to consumers, employers, benefits consulting firms and payers to assist them in selecting healthcare providers. Basic profile
information for certain providers is available free of charge on our website, www.healthgrades.com. For a fee, we offer healthcare
quality reports with respect to hospitals, nursing homes and physicians. These reports provide more detailed information than is
available free of charge on our website. Report pricing and content varies based upon the type of provider and whether the user is a
consumer or a healthcare professmnal (for example, a medical professmnal underwriter)..

We provide detailed online healthcare quality information for employers, benefits consulting firms, payers and other organiiations that
license our Quality Ratings Suite™ of products ~ Hospital Quality Guide™, Physician Quality Guide™, Nursing Home Quahty
Guide™ and Home. Health Quahty GuldﬁTM _ .

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
requires management to make estimates,and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and footnotes.
These estimates are based on management's current knowledge of events and actions they may undertake in the future, and actual
results could differ from those estimates.. . R

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Ratings and advisory revenue
B B " '

Strategic Qualiry.Initiative, Strategic Quality Partnerships and Quality Assessment and Improvement Programs:

Our ratings and advisory revenue is generated principally from.annual fees paid by hospitals that participate in our Strategic Quality
Initiative (SQI), Strategic Quality Partnership (SQP) (formerly, Distinguished Hospital Program or, “DHP”) and Quality Assessment
and Improvement (QAI) programs. The:SQI program provides business development tools to hospitals that are highly rated on our
website. Under the SQI program, we license the HealthGrades name and our "report card" ratings to hospitals. The license may be in a
single service line (for example, Cardiac) or multiple service lines (for example, Cardiac, Neuroscience and Orthopedics.) We also
assist hospitals -in. promotmg their ratings and measuring the success of their efforts utilizing our team of in-house healthcare
consultants. L A : . o ;

Our SQI and SQP programs provide a license to highly rated:l hospitals, enabling them to utilize our name and certain ratihgs
information for an annual period. Another feature of the SQI and. SQP programs is a detailed comparison of the data underlying a




hospital’s rating to local and national benchmarks. Our SQP program recognizes clinical excellence in hospitals among a range of
service lines. Hospitals that contract with us for SQP services receive all of the SQI features described above with respect to their
licensed service lines. In addition, hospitals can reference the additional DHA (Distinguished Hospital Award) designation. Hospital
clients are provided with additional marketing and planning assistance related to the DHA designation as well as trophies for display
at the hospital. DHP-PS (Distinguished Hospital Award Program for: Patient Safety) recognizes hospitals with the best patient safety
records in the nation. This award recognizes exceptional outcomes based on thirteen patient safety indicators from the Agency for
Healthcare on Quality Research. Under our DHP-PS program, we license the commercial use of the HealthGrades coiporate mark,
apphcable data and marketing messages that may be used by hospitals to demonstrate third party validation of excellence

‘Our QAI program is principally des1gned to help hosp1tals measure and improve the quahty of their care in particular areas where they
have lower ratings. Using our database and focusing on a particular hospital’s information and ratings we can help identify areas to
improve quality and measure how well the hospital performs relative to national and regional best practices: Qur consultants work on-
site with the hospital staff and physicians to present the data and assist in the quality analysis.

We typically receive a non-refundable’ payment at the beginning of each year of the contract term (which is typically three years,
subject to a cancellation right by either the client or us, on each annual anniversary date). We record the cash payment as deferred
revenue that is then amortized to revenue on-a straight-line basis over the respective year of the term. Certain of our products
represent a one-time delivery of data. For these arrangements, we recognize revenue at the time that the data is delivered. :

Quality Ratings Suite:

Through our Quality Ratings Suite (QRS), we license access to, and customize our database for employers, benefits consulting firms,
pavers and others. Modules currently available for license are the Hospital Quality Guide, Physician Quality Guide, Nursing Home
Quality Guide and Home Health Quality Guide.  Some of our.revenue for this product is derived through a relationship with Ingenix.
Typically, Ingenix will add the HealthGrades’ QRS functionality to services available to its existing clients who license Ingenix’
provider lookup online application. An additional licensing fee is charged, of which a portion is payable to us, with Ingenix retaining
the remaining part of the fee. We only recognize the fees that will ultimately be paid to us as revenue from Ingenix, and not the entire
amount of the licensing fee. We recognize revenues related to these agreements in a straight-line manner over the term of the
agreement. ’

In November 2005, we provided. notice to Ingenix that we would not renew the agreement, and the agreement terminated on
December 31, 2005. Under the terms of the agreement, we and Ingenix will continue to perform services under any ongoing customer
license for joint HealthGrades/Ingenix customers until the expiration or termination of the initial term of the license. In accordance
with the agreement, we are now utilizing the physician data derived from Ingenix. solely for existing joint HealthGrades/Ingenix
customers.

Healthcare Quality Reports:

We offer comprehensive quality information to professionals and consumers that provides current and historical quality information
on hospitals and nursing homes in more detail than is available on our website. In addition, we offer reports on physicians that contain
detailed information with respect to education, professional licensing history and other items. As pricing is usually on a per report
basis, we recognize revenue as reports are ordered and delivered to the customer.

COMMISSION EXPENSE

With respect to our SQI, SQP and QAI sales, we record the commission expense in the period it is earned, which is typically upon
contract execution for the first year of the agreement and on each anniversary date for clients that do not cancel in the second or third
year of the contract term. We record the commission expense in this manner because once a contract is signed, the salesperson has no
remaining obligations to perform during the agreement in order to earn the commission. .

PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT COSTS

We incur product development costs related to the development and support of our website and the development of applications to
support data compilation and extraction for our consulting services and modification of our quality guides. These costs (which consist
primarily of salaries and benefits, consulting fees and other costs related to software development, application development and
operations expense) are expensed as incurred unless they meet the capitalization criteria of AICPA Statement of Position 98-1,
Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use (SOP 98-1). During 2005, we had one
application that met the criteria for cost capitalization as described in Note 5.
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS" . i

Cash and cash equivalents generally consist of cash, overnight investment accounts that include short-term U.S. government
obligations with maturities not exceeding three months and investments in U.S. government and government agency debt securities
with original maturities not exceeding three months. Such investments are stated at cost, (which includes accrued interest on our
short-term government obligations), which apprommates fair Value given the short maturity dates, and are considered cash equivalents
for purposes of reporting cash flows.

SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS

The Company invests in U.S. government and government agency debt securities with maturity dates of 180 days or less. These
securities are classified as held-to-maturity because we have the positive intent and ability to hold the securities to maturity. Held-to-
maturity securities are stated at amortized cost, which approximates fair value given the short maturity dates, adjusted for amortization
of premium and accretion of discounts to maturity.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts of financial instruments, as reported in the'accompanying balance sheets, approximate their fair value primarily
due to the short-term and/or variable-rate nature of such financial'instruments.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

The majority of our accounts receivable are due from hospitals. Accounts receivable are due within 30 days and are stated at amounts
due from customers net of an allowance for doubtful accounts. Accounts outstanding longer than the contractual payment terms are
considered past due. We determine our allowance by considering a number of factors, including the length of time trade accounts
receivables are past due, any previous loss history and the customer’s ability to pay its obligations. We write off accounts receivable
when they become uncollectible, and payments subsequently received on such receivables are credited to the allowance for doubtful
accounts.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT )
Property and equipment are stated at cost. Costs of repairs and Inalntenance are expensed as 1ncurred Depreciation is computed using
the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the underlying assets. Amortization of leasehold improvements is computed
using the straight-line method over the shorter of the initial lease term or the estimated useful lives of the underlying assets. The

estimated useful lives used are as follows:

Computer equipment and software 3-5 years

Furniture and fixtures 5-7 years
Leasehold improvements 6 years -

INTANGIBLE ASSETS '

During 2005, we paid $235,000 to acquire certain intangible assets (survey tools as well as a survey builder application) from the
Foundation for Accountability, a not-for-profit organization. These tools are intended to enable consumers to compare their
healthcare experience to evidenced-based guidelines for specific conditions. These assets are being amortized over their expected

useful life of between 3-5 years. We evaluate the-carrying value of these assets in accordance with thé provisions of Statement of
Fmanc1al Accounting Standards No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intanglble Assets (SFAS 142). :

GOODWILL

Goodwill, which is stated at cost, is evaluated annually for impairment in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 142. See Note 6 for
discussion of our annual impairment test: performed in accordance with SFAS 142,

NET INCOME (LOSS) PER COMMON SHARE

We compute net income (loss) per common share in accordance w1th Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 128, Earnings
Per share (SFAS 128). Under the provisions of SFAS 128, basic. ‘net income (loss) per common share is computed by dividing the net
income (loss) for the period by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted net income
(loss) per common share is computed by dividing the net income (loss) for the period by the weighted average number of common
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shares and common share equivalents outstanding during the period. Common share equivalents, (composed of incremental common
shares issuable upon the exercise of common stock options and warrants) are included in diluted net income (loss) per share to the
extent these shares are dilutive, utilizing the treasury stock method. The treasury stock method utilizes the weighted average number
of shares outstanding during each year and the assumed exercise of dilutive stock options and warrants, less the number of treasury
shares assumed to be purchased from the proceeds, using the average market price of our common stock during the year. ‘Common
share equivalents are not included in our computation .of diluted net loss.per common share for the years ended December 31,-2003
because the effect on net loss per common share would be antidilutive. Common share-equivalents excluded from our calculation of
diluted net loss per common share because their effect would be antidilutive totaled 2,017,064 for the year ended December 31, 2003.
In addition, as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, options to purchase 70,371 and 2,054,356 shares of common stock, respectively, were
excluded from our calculation of dilutive securities as the exercise prices were above the market price for our common stock.

The followmg table sets forth the computauon of bas1c and diluted earmngs per share for the years ended December 31, 2005 2004
and 2003.. ' ’

2005 2004 2003
Numerator for both basic and diluted earnings .
per share:
Net income (loss) ‘ $ 4,139853 $§ 1,782,143 $ '(1,283,687)
Denominator:
Denominator for basic net income (loss) per o :
common share--weighted average shares 27,039,057 25,058,173 26,679,467

Effect of dilutive securities:
Outstanding employee stock options and
warrants 7.794.464 7.972.914 -
Denominator for diluted net income (loss) per : : :
common share--adjusted weighted average ‘ .
shares and assumed conversion ) 34,833,521 33,031,087 26,679,467

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

We account for our stock-based compensation arrangements using the intrinsic value method under the provisions of Accounting
Principles Board Opinion (APB) No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees (APB 25), and related interpretations.

Pro forma information regarding net income and earnings per share is required by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.
123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation (SFAS 123), and has been determined as if we had accounted for our employée stock
options under the fair value method of that accounting pronouncement. The fair value for options awarded during the years ended
December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 were estimated at the date of grant using the Black Scholes option pricing model with the
following weighted-average assumptions: risk-free interest rate over the life of the option of 1.32% to 4.37%; no dividend yield; and
expected three year lives of the options. Volatility factors used in 2005 were between 1.11 to 1.58. Volatility factors used in 2004
were between 1.51 and 1.78. The volatility factors utilized for the year ended December 31, 2003 were between 1.95 and 2.04.

The Black-Scholes option pricing model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded options, which have no vesting
restrictions and are fully transferable. In addition, option valuatlon models require the input of highly subjectlve assumptions,
mcludmg the expected stock pnce volatility.. :

For purposes of pro forma dlsclosure the esumated fair value of the optlons is amortized to expense over the optlons vestmg period.
Because compensation expense associated with an award is recognized over the vesting period, the impact on pro forma net income
(loss) as disclosed below may not be representative of compensation expense in future years. The following table illustrates the effect
on net income (loss) and income (loss) per share if we had applied the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS 123, using
assumptions described above, to our stock-based compensation plan:

E Year ended December 31,
2005 2004 2003

Net income (loss) as reported $4,139.853 $1,782,143 $(1,283,687)
Add: Stock-based compensation expense included in '
reported net income under APB 25 : . - . - -
_ Less: Total stock- based employee compensation expense determmed under ‘
' fair value based method for awards granted modified or settled net . ‘ ‘ : ' -
of tax effect ‘ - (545.054) (223,150) T (343512
Pro forma 'net income {(los) ‘ ' | $3.594,799 $1.558.993 $(1,627.199)
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Income (loss) per share as reported: - - ' . ' ‘ . .
Basic 3 0.15 s 0.07 $ (0.05)

Diluted ) $ 012 8 005 8 (0.05)
Income (loss) per share pro forma: . :

Basic ‘ : ‘ . h 013 s 0.06 $ (0.06)

Diluted ) ' : ‘ $ 010 $___ 005 § (0.06)

RECENTLY IS,SUE]), ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS
Share-Based Payments

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R),
Share-Based Payment (SFAS 123(R)). SFAS’ 123(R) requires employee stock options and rights to purchase shares under stock
participation plans to be accounted for under the fair value method, and eliminates the ability to account for these instruments under
the intrinsic value method prescribed by APB 25, and allowed under the original provisions of SFAS 123. SFAS 123(R) requires the
use of an option pricing model for estimating fair value, which is amortized to expense over the service periods. SFAS 123(R) is
effective for public companies for fiscal years that begin after June 15, 2005.

In March 20035, the Securities and Exchange Commission issued Staff Accounting Bulletin (SAB) 107. Share-Based Payment, to
provide additional guidance to public companies in applying the provisions of SFAS 123(R). During 2005, the FASB issued three
FASB Staff Positions (FSP): FSP FAS 123(R)-1, Classification and Measurement of Freestanding Financial Instruments Originally
Issued in Exchange for Employee Services under FASB Statement No. 123(R), FSP FAS 123(R)-2, Practical Accommodation to the
Application of Grant Date as Defined in FASB Statement No. 123(R), and FSP FAS 123(R)-3, Transition Election Related to
Accounting for the Tax Effects of Share-Based Payment Awards. We will adopt the provisions of SAB 107 in conjunction with the
adoption of SFAS 123(R) and also consider the guidance provided in the FSPs as we consider the effect that SFAS 123(R) will have
‘on our results of- operatlons f1na.nc1al position and cash flows. _

We account for our stock- based compensatlon arrangements using the intrinsic value method under the provisicns of APB 25 and
related interpretations. Under SFAS 123(R), we must determine ‘the appropriate fair value model to be used for valuing share-based
payments, the amortization method for compensation cost and the transition method to be used at the date of adoption. The transition
methods include modified prospective and modified retrospectlve adoption options. Under the modified retrospective option, prior
periods may be restated either as of the beginning of the year of adoption or for all periods presented. The modified prospective
method requires that compensation expense be recorded for all previously unvested stock options and restricted stock as they vest, and
for all awards issued or modified beginning on January 1, 2006. ‘

We have determined that we will adopt the modified prospecti?\/e transition method. With respect to unvested options that were
granted during 2005 and prior years, we will recognize compensation cost as expense based on the grant date fair value of those
awards calculated using the Black Scholes option pricing model previously utilized under SFAS 123 for proforma disclosures.

We expect to record additional coxhpens_ation expense related to our adoption of SFAS 123(R). with respect to the stock options that
are outstanding as of December 31, 2005 of approximately $675,000 for the year ended December 31, 2006. Depending upon the
amount of any share-based payments granted during 2006, this amount may not be indicative of the actual expense we incur during
2006. ,

ol N . )
i . N

Rental Costs During a Construction Period

In October 2005, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued FSP FAS 13-1, Accounting for Rental Costs Incurred during a
Construction Period (FSP FAS 13-1). Based on the provisions of FSP FAS 13-1, lessees are not permitted to capitalize rental costs
assoc1ated with either ground or building operating leases that are allocated to the construction period. These costs must be
recogmzed as rental expense and mcluded in income from continuing operatlons FSP FAS 13-1 is effectxve for us beginning January
1, 2006

As described in Note 13, Léeases, during 2005 we entered into a lease agreement for a new location in Golden, Colorado effective in
February 2005. During the construction period, prior to our occupancy, we capitalized approximately one and a half months of
construction period rent, including common area maintenance charges, totaling approximately $65,000. This- amount is being
'a‘mortized to rent expense over the sixt;‘(-three month term of our lease. FSP FAS 13-1 permits, but does not require, retrospective
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application of this position. We do not plan to apply this FSP retrospectively to previously capitalized rental costs. Based on the
provisions of FSP FAS 13-1 if we enter into any new leases in the future, we will no longer capitalize any construction period rent.

Accounting Changes and Error Corrections

In May 2005, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 154, Accounting
- Changes and Error Corrections, a.replacement of APB Opinion No. 20 and FASB Statement No. 3 (SFAS 154). SFAS 154 replaces
APB Opinion No. 20, Accounting Changes, and FASB Statement No. 3, Reporting Accounting Changes in Interim Financial
Statements, and changes the requirements for the accounting for and reporting of a change in accounting principle. .SFAS 154 applies
to all voluntary changes in accounting principle. It also applies to changes required by an accounting pronouncement in the unusual
instance that the pronouncement does not include specific transition provisions.

SFAS 154 requires retrospective application to prior periods’ financial statements of changes in accounting principle, unless it is
impracticable to determine either the period-specific effects or the cumulative effect of the change. SFAS 154 is effective for us
beginning January 1, 2006. We do not believe that the.adoption of SFAS 154 will have a significant effect on our financial
statements. ‘

3. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND RATINGS AND ADVISORY SERVICES REVENUE

Accounts receivable consisted of the following:

' 'DECEMBER 31
o . ’ 2005 . 2004
' " Trade, aceounts receivable ‘ B s 5.;624,943 . $3,049,611

Less allowance for doubtful accounts’ 4,207 15236
i R : v §$5600736  $3.034375

For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, we derived substantially all of our revenue from our ratings and-advisory
services. Furthermore, our marketing program services accounted for 59%, 60% and 72% of total ratings and advisory revenue for the
years ended December 31, 2005,.2004 and: 2003 respectively During 2005, 2004 and 2003, no individual customer accounted for
more the 10% of our revenues.. - . .

*4 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consist of the following:

DECEMBER 31

‘ 2005 ‘ 2004
Furniture and fixtures : : $..330792 . $ 807477
Computer equipment -and software - . . 3,163,104 L2,213413
Leasehold improvements and other 397.896 13,217
3,891,792 3,034,107
Accumulated depreciation and-amortization (2,296,727) - (2.651.237)
Netproperty and equipment . . § 1505065  § 382,870

For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003, depreciation expense was approximately $336,000, $146,000, and $98,000
respectively. .

5. AGREEMENT WITH HEWITT ASSOCIATES LLC

Effective June 30, 2005, we entered into a Development and Servrces Agreement Wthh was amended in September 2005
'(collectively, the “Agreement”) with Hewitt Associates LLC (“Hewitt”). Under the Agreement as initially executed, we will develop
and host applications that will enable Hewitt’s clients to make available to their employees and other participants enhanced Health
Grades healthcare quality information as well as other information regarding providers in a particular health plan’s network. Such
information will include our hospital and physician quality information along with healthplan supplied data.

Althouvh .the applications we are developing is being tailored for use by Hewitt, the software is 1nternally developed software as

defined in SOP 98-1. The arrangemerit with Hewitt is de51gned to be similar to a hostmg arrangement under which Hewitt will not
have the ability to take possession of the software; instead, the software functions as a means to display the quality information that is
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‘being passed to Hewitt’s clients. In addition; we may utilize some or all of the software to disseminate information to other customers
as well. Based upon the guidance from SOP 98-1, costs incurred during the. application development stage (such as software
configuration and interfaces, coding, installation to hardware and testing) of the application we are building are being capitalized. We
will continue to capitalize application development costs until the project is. substantially complete and ready for its intended use (after
all substantial testing is completed). Thereafter, we will begin amortizing these costs over the useful life of the application; which we
expect to be three years.” As of December 31, 2005, we capitalized approximately $400,000 of costs with respect to this application,
which are included in computer equipment and software in the property and equlpment table in Note 4, Property and Equipment.

1 8 .

Under the Agreement, durmg an initial evaluation period that ended on December 31, 2005 we prov1ded pilot services to one Hewitt
client. The Agreement provided that, at the end of the evaluation period, Hewitt .would determine whether we were successful in

" providing the pilot services. In addition, during the evaluation period, Hewitt would evaluate our capacity to collect, process,
integrate, deploy, maintain and update provider-specific data received from health plans that will enable a Hewitt client participant to
determine the identity of providers in a health plan’s network. If Hewitt determined that the pilot services were not successful or
otherwise do not warrant continuation of the Agreement, or if Hewitt determined that. we are not capable of providing the services
relating to provider-specific data on-an ongoing basis, Hewitt could terminate the Agreement, or, in connection with services relating
to provider-specific data, continue the agreement subject to fee reductions. For the year ended December 31, 2005, $400,000 has been
included in -our ratmgs and advisory revenue in the attached statement of operations with respect to fees related to the initial pﬂot
services.

L . ) . ) ! . . N » :
If Hewitt’s evaluations were favorable, Hewitt would pay to us a fee based upon the total number of Hewitt clients’ participants with
access to our websites, and the type of services to which the participants have access, in accordance with a fee schedule attached to the
Agreement, subject to minimum payments of $3,000,000 per annum in 2007, 2008 and 2009.
The Agreement contains “most favored nation” provisions under Wthh the fees payable to Hew1tt are subject to reduction if we offer
similar services to another customer at:a materially lower price. The Agreement also contains provisions designed to ensure that
Hewitt is obtaining pricing and levels of service that are competitive with market rates, prices and service levels given the nature,
volume and specific type of services provided by us. The Agreement provides for fee negotiation in the event specrﬁed ‘competitive
criteria are not met, and Hew1tt may terminate the Agreement if an adjustment is not agreed upon.

. S . ‘
The Agreement also provides that we will not, prior to the earlier of August 31, 2007 or the termination of the Agreement due to
certain specified events, develop, market, sell or license to any third party a service or search tool that contains substantially the same
functionality as the search tool and websites provided under the Agreement. However, we generally will not be precluded from
continuing to provide services and products (including upgrades to such services and products) that we provided to our general
customer base on the date of the Agreement so long as Hewitt’s proprretary rlghts and other materials are not used in connection with
the services or products.
The Agreement also contains mutual royalty-free, non-exclusive, licenses of certain data, information.and materials owned by or
licensed by third-parties to Health.Grades and Hewitt. In addition, the parties agreed to certain confidentiality provisions, and we
agreed to certain data security and non- sohc1tat10n requirements relatmg to Hewitt clients. -

The Agreement will continue until December 31, 2009, subject to automatic renewal for up to two consecutive one-year terms, unless
either party provides 90 days’ notice of an intent not to renew. The contract is subject to earlier termination as described above. In
addition, Hewitt will have the right to termmate the Agreement under other circumstances, including a’ “Change of Control” (as
defined in the Agreement) of us.

On December 31, 2005, we received a communication from Hewitt that they believe we will ultimately provide the services called for
" by the Agreement, but that they believed it would take a longer period of time before we would be able to do so.. They requested an
extension of the evaluation period, together with certain modifications of the Agreement. See Note 19 for an update on the status of
our Agreement with Hewitt. :
6. GOODWILL 1

As a result of the adoption of SFAS 142, we d1scontmued the amort1zat10n of goodw111 effective January 1, 2002. SFAS 142
describes various potential methodologies for determining fair value, including market capitalization (if a public company has one
reporting unit), discounted cash flow analysis (present value technique) and techniques based on multiples of earnings, revenue,
earnings before income tax, depreciation and amortization, and/or other financial measures. SFAS 142 also states that if a valuation
technique is used that considers multiple sources of information;_ such as-an average of the quoted market prices of the reporting unit
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over a specific time period and the results of a present value technique, the company should apply that techmque consistently period to
period (i.e., in the required annual impairment analysis in subsequent years)

As HealthGrades consists.of only one reporting unit, and 1s pubhcly traded, we began our fair value analysis with an evaluation of our
market capitalization. We applied a market capitalization approach by multiplying the number of actual shares outstanding by an
average market price. During 2003 and 2004 we applied an additional premium of 20% to this valuation to give effect’ to
management’s best estimate of a-“control premium.” Given that during this period, management and a venture capital investor owned
a substantial portion of our outstanding shares, management believed a premium of 20% was reasonable to give effect to additional
benefits a purchaser would derive from control of HealthGrades. Effective with the impairment test completed in'the fourth quarter of
2005, we eliminated the control prémium as our remaining venture capital investor sold over half of its remaining shares of our
common stock. As such, we believe that a control premium is no longer appropriate: ‘

As our shares are thinly traded, management believes that any analysis of HealthGrades’ .fair value should include valuation
techniques in addition to overall market capitalization. We contemplated utilizing cost, market or income approaches. However,
utilization of cost or market approaches was not feasible, particularly given the fact that HealthGrades does not fall into an easily
identifiable “peer group” of companies from which to compare valuations in the form of price/earnings ratios, sales of similar
companies, etc. Therefore, management determined to utilize an approach using the present value of expected future cash flows as an
additional valuation technique. Due to the inherent uncertainty involved in projecting cash flows, in particular for a growth company,
management developed a range of possible cash flows and der1ved a probability- welghted average of the range of poss1b1e amounts to
determine the expected cash flow. \

After deriving the market capitalization and expected cash flow valuations as described above, we then applied an equal weighting to
each model to derive an overall fair value estimate of HealthGrades. As required under SFAS 142, we performed our annual test for
impairment of our goodwill during the fourth quarters of 2003 2004 and 2005. These tests resulted in no additional impairment to our
goodwill balance :

We will perform the annual impairment test in the fourth quarter of subsequent years, or sooner, if indicators of impairment arise at an
interim date. Any impairment identified during the annual impairment tests will be recorded as an operating expense in our statement
of operations. We expect to continue to utilize the combined market cap1ta11zat1on and expected cash flow approach described above
to perform our annua] impairment analysis and interim tests if necessary. ' "

7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

During 2005, we paid-$236,000 to acquire certain intangible assets (survey tools as well as a survey builder application) from the
Foundation for Accountability, a not-for-profit organization. 'These tools are intended to enable consumers to compare their
healthcare experience to evidenced-based guidelines for specific conditions. Amortization of intangible assets was approximately
$58,000 in 2005. We capitalized approximately $118,000 to the survey builder application, which is being amortized over its
estimated useful life of five years and $118,000 to the'survey tools, which is being amortized over its estimated useful life of three
years. Expected amortization expense related to these assets for the next five years are as follows: - .

2006 : = $62,728
2007 ‘ ' R ‘ ' : : 62,728
2008 ' B ‘ e , -26,790
2009 - 23,523
2010 1,960

8. DEFERRED RENT

As of December 31, 2005, we had approximately $382,000 recorded as deferred rent in our accompanying balance sheet. Deferred
rent relates principally to cash payments we received from the landlord of our new office facility as reimbursement for tenant
improvements we made. In addition, deferred rent includes approximately one and a half months of construction period rent from the
period beginning on the date upon which we accepted delivery of the premises and ending when we actually moved into the facility.
Deferred rent will be amortized as a reduction to rent expense over the 63 month term of our lease. ‘

9. STOCK AND WARRANT REPURCHASE "

Pursuant to a Stock and Warrant Repu‘rchase Agreement, dated March 11, 2003, we paid a former venture capital invéstor, Chancellor
V., L.P. (“Chancellor”) $500,000 to repurchase all 12,004,333 shares of our common stock and warrants to purchase 1,971,820 shares
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of our common stock that Chancellor had acquired through certain financing transactions in 2000 and 2001. Immediately prior to the
repurchase, Chancellor’s ownership of HealthGrades common stock represented 33% of our outstanding common stock, and
Chancellor’s ownership of HealthGrades common stock and warrants represented 36% of our total outstanding common stock
(assuming full exercise of the warrants held by Chancellor, but assuming no exercise of any other warrants or options).

10. BANK LINE OF CREDIT AND TERM LOAN |

On May 13, 2002, we completed a line of credit arrangement (t'he “Agréement”) with Silicon Valley Bank. Under the terms of the
Agreement, we were entitled to request advances not to exceed an aggregate amount of $1.0 million (subject to a limit of 75% of
Eligible Accounts (as defined in the Agreement) plus 50% of our cash invested with Silicon Valley Bank, over the one-year term of
the Agreement. Through subsequent amendments, we extended ‘the term of the Agreement to February 13, 2006. We did not borrow
any funds under the Agreement. However, in connection with a lease we executed for our new headquarters in Golden, Colorado, in
December 2004, we executed a standby letter of credit with Silicon Valley Bank in January 2005, for $500,000,. Such which reduced
the amount we could request as an advance under the Agreement. Therefore, as of December 31, 2005, $500,000 of our line of credit
was available to us. Advances under the Agreement were to bear interest at Silicon Valley Bank’s prime rate plus 0.75% and be
secured by substantially all of our assets. '

In addition, an amendment to the Agreement provided for a tcﬁn loan of $500,000, which carried an interest rate of 5.94% and was
due on March 1, 2005. In October 2003, we repaid the balance of the term loan.

In February 2006, our line of credit arrangement with Silicon' Valley Bank expired, and we did not renew the arrangement. We
anticipate that our $500,000 standby letter of credit with Silicon Valley Bank will be secured as a compensating balance against the
cash and cash equivalents we maintain with Silicon Valley Bank. :

11. COMMON STOCK AND WARRANTS

During the year ended December 31, 2005, warrants to purchase 2,136,600 shares of our common stock were converted into
2,095,020 shares of our common stock, in accordance with a net exercise provision of the warrants. In addition, warrants to purchase
41,580 shares of our common stock were exercised at a price of $0.26 per share. .

As of December 31, 2005, we had 7,975,186 common shares res‘erv‘ed for future issuance under our 1996 Equity Compelnsatidn Plan.

12. STOCK OPTION PLANS

On October 15, 1996, our Board of Directors approved the 1996 Equity Compensation Plan (the "Equity Plan"), which initially
provided for the grant of options to purchase up to 2,000,000 shares of HealthGrades common stock. The total number of shares
authorized for issuance under the Equity Plan increased to 6,000,000 in 1998, 7,000,000 in 2000, 8,000,000 in 2001 and 13,000,000 in
2002. Our stockholders approved the Equity Plan and each increase in shares authorized for issuance. Both incentive stock options
and non-qualified stock options may be issued under the provisions of the Equity Plan. Our employees, members of the Board of
Directors and certain consultants and advisors are eligible to participate in the Equity Plan, which will terminate no later than October
14, 2006. Our Board of Directors or a committee of the Board of Directors authorizes the grants and vesting of options under the
Equity Plan. As of December 31, 2003, there were 1,744,863 shares available for future granting under the Equity Plan.

A summary of our stock option activity‘ and related information for the years ended December 31 is as follows:

2005 2004 2003

WEIGHTED- WEIGHTED- - WEIGHTED-
AVERAGE AVERAGE - AVERAGE
EXERCISE EXERCISE EXERCISE
OPTIONS PRICE - OPTIONS PRICE OPTIONS PRICE
Outstanding at beginning of Yea.r . . 9,778,384 $ \ 0.41 9,831,408 § 031 9,857,426 $ 0.78
Granted ¢ '
- Exercise price equal to . : ‘ . :
fair value of common stock 490,500 $ 3 65 919,004 $ 1.32 - 1,390,548 $ 0.26
Exercised (2,078,020) $ 030 (828,023) $ 0.15 (86,447, $  0.11
Forfeited (215.678) $ i.69 (144,005) $__099 (1,330.119) $_372
Qutstanding at end of year, : 7.975.186 $ 10.61 9,778,384 § 041 9,831.408 $ 031
Exercisable at end of year ‘ 6755757 % $ 036 7.466,01 $ 035

1,038 - 8062638
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Welghted average fair value of opuons
* granted during the year: C
Exercise price equal to.fair value of: . :
common stock $289 $ 114 $024

Exercise prices for optlons outstandmg and the weighted-average remaxnmg contractual lives of those options at December 31, 2005
are as follows:

OPTIONS OUTSTANDING K OPTIONS EXERCISABLE '

WEIGHTED .
AVERAGE WEIGHTED- ‘ WEIGHTED
. . REMAINING AVERAGE . AVERAGE
RANGE OF NUMBER CONTRACTUAL  EXERCISE NUMBER EXERCISE
EXERCISE PRICES  OUTSTANDING _LIFE (YEARS) —__PRICE EXERCISABLE PRICE
$0.04-50.17 . 4,542,603 6.05 ‘ $ 0.10 . : 4444270 $ 0.10
© $0.25-80.50 719,872 713 032 447,296 033
$0.53-50.63 1,205,520 3.90 058 1,205,520 0.58
$0.75-30.88 266,028 5.56 0.82 254,028 0.82
$1.01-$1.95 T 652,626 8.05 : 135 ., . 288,771 144
$2.00-52.94 242,166 8.04 2.82 : 45,834 273
$3.00-83.98 108,500 8.82 347 7,667 3.40
$4.10-84.80 167,500 9.54 438 - -
$5.01:85.36 8,000 - 9.39 510
$6.00-$6.75. 35,900 194 . . 6.51 ‘ 35,900 631
$9.75-811.75 26,471 157 1148 26471 11.48
$0.04-811.75 1975186 6.11 $ 06l ‘ | 6755757 $ 038

13. OPERATING LEASES

We are obligated under operating leases for our office space and certain office equipment. In February 2004, we added approximately
2,900 square feet of office space to our lease for 12,200 square feet in Lakewood, Colorado. Total annual lease costs for our full-
service lease on the 15,100 square feet were approximately $270,000. In December 2004, we executed a lease agreemient on an office
building at a new location in Golden, Colorado for approximately 28, 700 square feet. The lease term under this new lease began in
February 2005. The term of the lease is 63 months. .

Future minimum payments under the operatlng leases with terms in excéss of one year are summanzed as follows for the years endmg
December 31 » -

2006 . 475433 . - .

B 2007 457,657

] . 2008 ' ‘440,390

= ‘ 12009 - 448,374
2010 .- .- 187,775

Thereafter . -

Total ' $2.009,629

Rent expense for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 under all operating leases was approximately $400,000,
$327,000 and $250,000, respectively.

14. INCOME TAXES

We are a corporation subject to federal and certain state and local incomme taxes. The provision for income taxes is made pursuant to
the liability method as prescribed in Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 109, Accountmg for Income Taxes (SFAS 109),
This method requires recognition of deferred income taxes based on temporary differences between the financial reporting and income
tax bases of assets and liabilities, using currently enacted income tax rates and regulations related to the years such temporary
differences become deductible and payable.

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for

financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax- purposes. Significant components of our deferred tax assets and
liabilities at December 31, 2005 and 2004 are as follows:

46




;; 2005 2004
g

Deferred tax assets:

Accrued liabilities - $ . 48,152 % 49,741
Allowance for doubtful accounts - - 1,599 6,247
Deferred rent . 145,108 --
Intangible assets, net ’ 16,388 --
Alternative minimum tax credit * 15,445 .-
Net operating loss carryforwards 1,222,379 1,574.402
' 1,449,071 1,630,390
Valuation allowance for deferred
tax assets -- (1,500.550)
. Gross deferred tax asset i 1.449.071 129,840
Deferred tax liabilities: . '
Prepaid experises . ' 207,013 104,075
. Property and equipment, net - 130,096 25765
Gros$ deferred tax liability ‘ 337.109 129,840

Net deferred tax asset $ 1111 252 $ -

During the year ended December 31, 2005, the valuation allowance for deferred tax assets was reduced by $1,500,550. The valuation
allowance at December 31, 2004 resulted. from uncertainty regardmg our ability to realize the benefits of the related deferred tax
assets. In accordance with SFAS 109, we assessed the contmumg need for the valuation allowance and concluded that once we had
‘achieved at least six quarters of net income before tax and cumulatlve net income before tax during the most recent 12 quarters, we

could reverse the yaluation allowance. Dunng the second quarter of 2005, we met these criteria and determined that the valuation
allowance was no, longer required.

'
| f

The.income tax (benefit) expense for tlle yeafs ended December 31; 2005, 2004 andr‘20‘03 is summarized as follows:

2005 2004 . 2003
Current:
Federal $1,0298828 $ - - & -
State 90,417, - e
: 1.120299" - -
Deferred: ) e C
Federal (978,360) -- B -
State __(133.602) -- --
(1,111,962) . - -
Total - $ 8337 § . - § -

)
[

The total income tax expense differs from amounts currently payable because certain revenues and expenses are reported in the
statement of operations in periods that differ from those in which they are subject to taxation. The principal differences relate to
different methods of calculating depreciation and deferred rent for financial statement and income tax purposes, currently deductible
book prepaid amounts and currently non-deductible book accruals and reserves.

oo ' v . | N -
The current income tax expense summarized above for the year,ended December 31, 2005 does not include a tax benefit of $1,155,187
-related to certain employee stock option transactions.' In accordance with SFAS 109, this tax benefit has been recorded as an increase
to stockholder’s equity in the accompanymg balance sheet. |In addition, this tax benefit has been recorded as a cash flow from
operations in the accompanymg statement of cash flows.: - E. ‘
A reconciliation between the statutory: federal income tax rate of 34% and our 0. 2% 0. 0% and 0.0% effective tax rates for the years
ended December 31, 2005 2004 and 2003, respectlvely, is as follows

; 2005. . _2004 2003

Federal statutory income tax rate - .. 34.0% . 34.0% (34.0)%
State income taxes, net of federal beneﬁt 43 - 6.4 (5.0)
Non-deductible expenses 4 0.8 .
Miscellaneous 2.3) (3.4) (1.5)
Deferred tax asset valuation allowance (36.2) (37.8) . 382

Effective income tax rate 0.2% 0.0% 0.0%
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We have approximately $3,200,000 in net operating loss carryforwards which may be used to offset future taxable income. These loss
carryforwards expire from 2019 through 2023. Certain changes in our stock ownership during 2001 resulted in an ownership change
pursuant to the tax laws and, due to this change, approximately $800,000 of our net operating loss carryforwards are subject to
restrictions on' the timing of their use. _The remalmng $2 400,000 of net operatmg loss carryforwards are not subject to any use
limitations.

15. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
Strategic Performance Fund - II

On or about October 10, 2002, Strategic-Performance Fund.- II (“SPF-II") commenced ar action in the Circuit Court of the 17th
Judicial Circuit in and for Broward County, Florida against us, alleging breach of two leases.. These leases relate to two buildings in
which one of our former affiliated practices, Orthopaedic Associates, P.A. d/b/a Park Place Therapeutic Center (“Park Place”) leased
office space. Park Place ceased the payment of its rental obligations with respect to'the two leases in May 2000, and subsequently filed
a petition for bankruptcy, under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code, in the United States Bankruptcy Court, Southern District of
Florida, Ft. Lauderdale Division. SPF-II sought damages against us in the amount of approx1mate1y $4.7 million.

The basis of the allegation against us was that while under the corporate name of Specralty Care Network, Inc., we entered into an
Assignment, Assumption and Release Agreement dated July 8, 1997, under which we assumed the obligations of Orthopaedic
Management Services, Inc., ‘as lessee, under its Lease Agreement with the owner and lessor, "Park Place Orthopaedic Center 1L, Lid.
‘The agreement was executed in connection with our acquisition of most ‘of the non-medical assets of the Park Place practice. On
October 1, 1997, the owner of the leased property sold its interests in the leasehold estates to SPF-II. On June 10, 1999, we sold the
assets of the Park Place practice, 1nc1ud1ng the leasehold interests, back to Park Place and entered into an Absolute Ass1gnment and
Assumption Agreement with Park Place, under which Park Place agreed to indemnify us in connection with the leasehold obhgatrons
In addition, we entered into an Indemnification Agreement with Park Place and its individual physician owners, under which the
individual physician owners (severally up to their ownership interest in the practice) agreed to indemnify us in connection with the
leasehold obligations. "SPF-II alleged that, notwithstanding the assignment of our leasehold 1nterests to Park Place, HealthGrades
remains liable for all lessee obligations under the leases

We filed a response to the initial complaint instituted by SPF-II, denying all liability with respect to the subject leases. In addition, we
filed a third-party complaint against the individual physician owners seeking indemnification from each of these individuals under the
terms of the Indemnification Agreement. The physician owners filed a response to our complaint denying their liability under the
Indemnification Agreement, and asserting several affirmative defenses, including, among others, our failure to mitigate damages, lack
of consideration, our assertion of a premature claim as liability and damages have not been established by SPF-II, rejection of the
leases by the bankruptcy court, and, in the case of one physician owner, a claim that an “agent” of ours (who was, in fact, an employee
of Park Place both before and after our affiliation with the practice) fraudulently induced the purchase of the Park Place practice’s
assets from us. The physician owners also filed a motion to enjoin further. prosecution of the action instituted against them by us and
:Bank of America, the. lender in connection with their repurchase of the assets of the Park Place practlce ‘pending, resolution 0f the
bankruptcy proceedmg : .

In November 2003, we executed a Settlement Agreement and Mutual Release (the “Settlement Agreement”) with SPF-II, Orthopaedic
Associates, P.A. d/b/a Park Place Therapeutic Center (“Park Place™) and four of the physician owners of Park Place, in connection
with a legal proceeding concerning an alleged breach by us of two leases. In consideration for the dismissal of all claims and mutual
releases, we paid approximately $441,000 into an escrow account to be released to SPF-II-upon.the satisfaction of certain conditions
of the Settlement Agreement. In addition, we agreed to pay an additional $50,000 to SPF-II on or before September 25, 2004. - The
aggregate payment amount of $491,000 was recorded as an expense in our statement of operations in the third quarter of 2003. As the
$441,000 payment was made into escrow prior to'year end, this cash was removed from our balance sheet as of December 31, 2003.
Payment out of escrow was contingent upon the occurrence, on or before September- 25, 2004 of (i) bankruptcy court approval of
Chapter 11 plans relating to Park Place and the four physician owners and (ii) the payment of a specified amount to SPF-II pursuant to
the Chapter 11 plans. In April 2004, upon satisfaction of'the conditions described above, the $441,000 in the above mentioned escrow
account was released to SPF-II. In July 2004, we made the final $50,000 payment to SPF-II, and an order of dismissal was entered on
July 30, 2004. : ‘

Indemnification of our Chief Executive Officer
In 2004, we provided indemnification to our Chief Executive Officer, Kerry R. Hicks, for legal fees totaling approximately $272,000

relating to litigation involving Mr. Hicks. We provided additional indemnification to Mr. Hicks of approximately $461,000 during
2005. The litigation arose from loans that Mr. Hicks and three other executive officers provided to us in December 1999 in the
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amount of $3,350, 000 (including $2, 000 000 individually- loaned by Mr. Hicks). These loans enabled us to purchase a minority
interestdn an internet healthcare rating business that has become our current healthcare provider rating and advisory services business.
Although we were the majority owner of the business, we had agreed with the minority interest holder that if we failed to purchase the
holder’s interest by December 31, 1999, we would relinquish control and majority ownership to the holder. In March 2000, the
executive officers converted our obhgatlons to them (including the $2, 000 000 owed to Mr. Hicks) into our equity securities in order
to induce several private investors to mvest an aggregate of $14,800,000 in Gur equity securities.

The executive officers personally borrowed money from our principal lending bank in order to fund their loans to us. In early 2001,
the bank claimed that Mr. Hicks was obligated to pay amounts Iowed to the bank by a former executive who was unable to fully repay
his loan; Mr. Hicks denied this obhganon In October 2002, the bank sold the note to an affiliate of a collection agency (the collection
agency and the affiliate are collectwely referred to as “the collect10n agency”). Although the bank informed the collection agency in
July 2003 of the bank’s conclusion that Mr. Hicks, was not obhgated under the former executive’s promissory note issued to the bank,
the collection agency commenced 11t1gat10n in September 2003 in federal court in Tennessee to collect the remaining balance of
approximately $350,000 on the note and named Mr. Hicks as a‘ldefendant On motion by Mr. Hicks, the court action was stayed, and
Mr. Hicks commenced an arbitration proceedmg against the collection agency in October 2003, seeking an order that he had no
liability under the note and asserting claims for damages. The bank was added as a party in March 2004.

The bank repurchased, the note from the collection agency in December 2003 and resold the note to another third party in February
2004, so. that Mr. Hicks’ 0b11gat10n to repay the note was no lor}ger at issue. The remalmng claims included, among others, claims by
the bank against Mr. Hicks. for costs and expenses of collection of the loan, claims by the collection agency against Mr. Hicks for
abuse of process and tortious interference with the relationship between the bank and the collection agency and claims by Mr. Hicks
against the bank for breach of fiduciary duty and fraud, .and. agalnst the collection agency for abuse of process and defamation.
Mr. Hicks also commenced litigation against the other pames as well as two individuals afﬁhated with the collection agency (together
with the collection agency, the “collection agency parties”), based on similar claims. That case was removed to federal court by the
defendants. Mr. Hicks later filed an amended complaint against the collection agency parties in federal district court for abuse of
process, defamation and intentional infliction of emotional distress. The federal district court determined that Mr. Hicks’ claims
should be submitted to the arbitration proceedmg, but in January 2005, the arbitrator stayed Mr. Hicks' federal court claims and the
collection agency’s claims against Mr. Hicks for abuse of process and tortious interference until after consideration of the other
pending claims. An arbitration hearing was held in February 2005 on the other claims submitted by the parties.

In April 2005, the arbitrator announced his determination. The arbitrator ruled that the collection agency was liable to Mr. Hicks in
the amount of $400,000 for emotional distress and other maladiés as well as attorneys’ fees in the amount of $15,587 with interest as a
result of the collection agency’s abuse of process in initiating the action in federal court in Tennessee. The arbitrator determined that
the bank had no liability.

Mr. Hicks has not been paid the arbltratlon award. The collect1on agency sought recon51derat10n of the ruling by the arbitrator, who
denied the request. Mr. Hicks filed a motion with the federal district court to confirm the arbitration award, and the court confirmed
the award on October 26, 2005. The- collection agency filed a notice of appeal in connection with the federal district court’s
confirmation of the arbitration award entered in favor of Mr. Hicks. Counsel for Mr; Hicks has advised us that Mr. Hicks has filed a
motion to dismiss the notice of appeal because several clalms remain unresolved by the court and the district court did not certify its
ruling for appeal.

The hearing on the remaining matters in the arbitration was held February 28, 2006 through March 3, 2006. The arbitrator who heard
these claims died unexpectedly a few days after the arbitration hearing was complete and did not issue a ruling. A new arbitrator has
been appointed. It is anticipated that, durlng April 2006, the new arbitrator will set procedures under which the remammg claims w111
be decided. '

Our determination to indemnify Mr. Hicks was based on, among other things, the fact that the dispute related to Mr. Hicks’ efforts and
personal financial commitment to provide fundsto us in December 1999, without which we likely would not have remained viable.
Mr. Hicks has advised us that he intends to reimburse us for all indemnification expenses we have incurred and continue to 1ncur from
the proceeds of any final award paid to him, net-of any income taxes payable by him resulting from the award.

By a letter to our Board of Directors dated February 13, 2006 ofte of the collection agency parties made allegations directed at us, Mr.
Hicks and the attorneys representing Mr. Hicks in the arbitration. The principal allegations appear to be that we, Mr. Hicks, ‘and the
attorneys conspired to enter into an illegal arrangement with an' account officer of the bank whose loan was the initial subject of the
arbitration, without the bank’s knowledge, that enabled us to 1nd1rect1y obtain funds from the bank and, in conspiracy with the late
arbitrator, prevented the collection agency parties from reportmg the alleged conduct to government authorities. The collection
agency party threatened suit if it is not pald $10.3 million, :
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We believe these allegations are absurd and completely without merit. To our knowledge, the collection agency parties have not
sought to assert any such “claims” against us in the arbitration. We will vigorously contest any litigation that may be brought against :

us by the collection agency parties. ;

We are subject to other legal proceedings and cla1ms that drise in.the ordinary course of our busmess In the opinion of management‘
these actions are unlikely to materially affect our financial’ posrtlon ‘

16. COMMITMENTS

o R

We have entered into employment agreements that provrde tiwo executives with minimum base pay, annual incentive awards and other
fringe benefits. We expense all costs related to the agreements in the perrod that the services are rendered by the employee. In the
event of death, disability, termination with or without cause, voluntary employee termination, or change in our ownership, we may be
partially or wholly relieved of our financial obligations to such individuals. However, under certain circumstances, a change in ‘control’
of us may provide significant and immediate enhanced compensation to the executives. At December 31, 2005, we were contractually
obligated to pay base pay compensatlon to these executrves of approx1mately $530 000 through December 31, 2006. ‘

. 3
v !

17. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN

We maintain a’ deﬁned contribution ‘employee benefit plan (“the Benefit Plan”). The ‘Benefit Plan covers substantlally all
HealthGrades’ employees and includes a qualified non-elective contribution equal to 3% of annual compensatlon applicable to all
eligible participants, regardless of whether or not the partu:lpant contnbutes to the Beneﬁt Plan

Expense under the Benefit Plan, mcludmg the Qualified Non Electrve Contrrbutron aggregated approxrmately $178,000, $139,000
and $116,000 for 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectwely ,

18. QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED)

The following is‘a summary of the quarterly results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004.

2005 ’ March 31 June 30 ‘September 30  December 31
Revenue: o .
Ratings and advisory $ 4699927 $§ 4868748, % 5334279 $ 5,891,219
Other 6,552 o387 ' . 6,375 )
Total revenue ' 4,706,479 4,869,135 A 5,340,654 5,891,238
Expenses:
Cost of ratings and advisory revenue 726,760 795,997 780,949 864.962
Gross margin 3,979,719 4,073,138 4,559,705' 5,026,276
Operating expenses: ’ o l : .A _ l, . 3
Sales and marketing 1,344,943 1,270,813 1,331,590 T 1,854,244
Product development 783,294 T 734,664 766,611, 751,159.
General and administrative 1,317,005 i 1,246,867, - 1,115081 - . 1,180,143
Income from operations . . 534477 820,794 1,346,423 ) 1,240,730
Other: '
© Other -- 1,405 -- ' T
. Interest income .20,432 . 34,316 58,394 91,982
Interest expense ’ - ' (73) (388) (102)
Income before income taxes : 554,909 856, 442 . 1,404,229 . \ il ,532,610
Income tax benefit (expense) -- 1,051,017 (537.447) (521.907)
Net income 554,909 1,907,459 866,782 810.703
Net income per share (basic) $ 002 § 007 % 0.03' 8 0.03
Weighted average shares outstanding - . . o - C :
(basic) . 25980483 26,889,433 27.504.864 27,756,808

Net income per share (dtluted) $ 0.02 3 0.05 3 002 $ 0.02

‘Weighted average shares outstandmg . ‘ L : o _ .
(diluted) ' ‘ 4447212 34955601 ' __35.032.559 34,874,073
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2004 . _ . ) . ~March3l - June 30 September 30 December 31 -

Revenue: - ) . - .

Ratings and advisory $ 3217423 § 3,500, 314‘ $ 3,673,293 $ 4,145274

Other 250 867. 286 44
Total revenue 3,217,673 3,501,181 3,673,579 4,145,318
Expenses: . - ‘ ; g ‘

Cost of ratings and advisory revénue - > 662203 548.103 650,932 626,964

Gross margin ‘ L 2,555470 2,953,078 3,022,647 - 3,518,354
Operating expenses: .
Sales and marketing " 1,091,450 ¢ 1,152,999 - 1,296,566 1,391,195
Product development - 465,450 445,232 481,819 624,940
General and administrative 803.209 731.214 803,894 998981
Income (loss) from operations ‘ 195,361 623,633'; 438,368 503,238
Other: . !

Interest income ) 1.850 3233 __4.351 12,109
Income (loss) before income taxes | 197,211 626,866 442,719 515,347
Income tax benefit -- = --
Net income (loss) ' ‘ 197.211 626,866 442,719 515,347
Net income (loss) per share (basic) 8 0.01 $ 003 $ 0.02 3 Q.02
Weighted average shares outstanding ‘ ' .

(basic) 24,835,779 25,030,159 25,110477 25,253,553
Net income (loss) per share (diluted) 3 001 8 _ 002" $ 001 . §_ 0.02
Weighted average shares outstanding 32,063,695 ' _ 33.023,883 _ 33,192,577 —33.836,726

-~ (diluted) ‘

19. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS -
Hewitt Agreement

On March 28; 2006, we filed a Demand for Arbitration before the American Arbitration Association against Hewitt Associates LLC
(“Hewitt™). The Demand for Arbitration relates to a Development and Services Agreement with Hewitt that we entered into effective
June 30, 2005, (as amended, the “Agreement”). Under the Agreement, we were to develop and host applications that would enable
Hewitt’s clients to make available to their employees and other participants enhanced Health Grades’ health care quality information
as well as other information regarding providers in a particular health plan’s network. Such information was to include our hospital
and physician quality information along with health plan supplied data. -

Under the Agreement, during an initial evaluation period that ended on December 31, 2005, we provided pilot services to one Hewitt
client. The Agreement provided that, at the end of the evaluation period, Hewitt would determine whether we were successful in
providing the pilot services. In.addition, during the evaluation period, Hewitt was to evaluate our capacity to collect, process,
integrate, deploy, maintain and update provider-specific data received from health plans that would enable a Hewitt client participant
to determine the identity of providers in-a health plan’s network (“Network Tag Services”). If Hewitt determined that the pilot
services were not successful or otherwise did not warrant continuation of the Agreement, or if Hewitt determined that we are not
suitable to provide the Network Tag Services, Hewitt could terthinate the Agreement. The Agreement provided that notice of such
termination must be sent to us no later than December 31, 2005. .

If Hewitt’s evaluations were favorable, Hewitt would pay to us a fee based upon the total number of Hewitt clients’ participants with
access to our websites, and the type of services to which the participants have access, in accordance with a fee schedule attached to the
Agreement, subject to minimum payments of $3 million per annum in 2007, 2008 and 2009. :
The Demand for Arbitration alleges, among other thmgs that on December 31, 2005, Hewitt sent us a letter in which Hetht
concluded that the provision of the pilot services was “successful, ™ and that, with regard to the Network Tag Services, the health
plans have been slow to respond to the Hewitt/Health Grades request for data. Moreover, the Demand for Arbitration alleges that
Hewitt did not terminate the Agreement.on December 31, 2005 and that follow up e-mails from Hewitt made reference to Hewitt’s
desire to “amend the existing Agreement ...”. The Demand for Arbitration futher alleges that our response to Hewitt’s December 31,

'51




letter, while committing us to the relationship, reminded Hewitt that bringing the health plan information to us is one of the principal
responsibilities Hewitt has under the Agreement. In addition, the Demand for Arbitration states that, on March 10, 2006, Hewitt
claimed that the December 31, 2005 letter invoked the right to terminate the Agreement, even though the December 31 letter makes no
reference to terminating the Agreement; moreover, on March 15, 2006, Hew1tt administrators refused to continue to perform Hewitt’s

obligations under the Agreement.

In the Demand for Arbitration, we claim, among other things, that Hewitt has willfully repudiated and breached the terms of the
Agreement by falsely contending that it had the right to terminate the Agreement based on our performance of the pilot services and
the Network Tag Services; by refusing to continue to perform under the Hewitt Agreement; and by falsely contending that we had
materially breached the Agreement with Hewitt had precluded us from providing services under the Agreement and our performance
had at all times been commendable. We are seeking $21 million in damages, plus costs.

Hewitt has not yet responded to the Demand for Arbitration.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

Not applicable.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, evaluated the effectiveness of our
disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based on that evaluation, the Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this
report are functioning effectively to provide reasonable assurance that the information required to be disclosed by us in reports filed
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is (i) recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the
SEC’s rules and forms and (ii) accumulated and communicated to our management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding disclosure.

Change in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

No change in our internal control over financial reporting occurred during the Company’s most recent fiscal quarter that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information

On March 28, 2006, Mark Pacala resigned as a director of Health Grades, Inc., effective following the Board of Directors meeting on
March 29, 2006.

Under agreements executed in March 2000, Health Grades and certain of its current and former executive officers generally agreed to
take such actions (including in the case of the individuals, voting their shares) as were in their control so that one designee of Essex
Woodlands Health Ventures Fund IV, L.P. (“Essex™) was elected to the Board of Directors. Mr. Pacala, a Managing Director of

Essex, was Essex’s designee. ‘These agreements terminated once Essex held less than five percent of Health Grades’ outstanding
common stock. On February 27, 2006, Essex sold all remaining shares of Health Grades stock that is then owned. .

PART IIT
Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

This information {other than the information relating to-executive officers included in Part I) will be included in an’amendment to this
Form 10-K, which will be filed within 120 days after the close of our fiscal year covered by thls report

Item 11. Executlve Compensauon

ThlS information will be included in an amendment to this Form 10- K which will be ﬁled within 120 days after the close of our fiscal
year-covered by this report. -
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Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

| Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table provides information, as of December 31, 2005 regarding securities issuable under our stock based compensatlon

plans.

v

Plan category

Number of securities
to be issued upon .
exercise of
outstahding options,
warrants and rights

(a)

Weighted-average

“exercise price of

“outstanding options,

‘warrants and rights

(b)

Number of securities
remaining available
for future issuance
under equity
compensation plans
(excluding securities
reflected in column
(a))

(c)

Equity compensation | .
plans approved 1 !
by security holders ' 7,975,186

$0.61 1,744,863

Equity compensation
plans not approved

by security holders N/A ‘ ' N/A

Total ? 7,975,186 1,744,863

Other information required to be included in this item will be included in an amendment to this Form 10-K, which will be filed within
120 days after the close of our fiscal year covered by this report.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions g:

;
This information will be included in an amendment to this Form 10:K, Wthh will be filed within 120 days after the close of our fiscal
year covered by this report.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

This information will be included in an amendment to this Form 10- K which will be filed within 120 days after the close of our fiscal
year covered by this report. ‘

N

PARTIV.

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES.
. ,,

(a) 1. Financial Statements.

The financial statements listed in the accompanymg Index to F1nanc1a1 Statements and Financial Statement Schedule at page 32
are filed as part of this Form 10-K. ‘ t

2. Financial Statement Schedules. l
The following financial statement schedule is filed as part of this Form 10-K:

Schedule II - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts. ;

All other schedules have been omitted because they are not apphcable, or not required, or the information is shown in the Financial
Statements or notes thereto.

(b) Exhibits. o R
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The following is a list of exhibits filed as part of this annual report on Form-10-K. Unless otherwise indicated, the file number of each
document incorporated by reference is 0-22019.

EXHIBIT
NUMBER
31

3.2

10.1*

10.2.1

10.2.2.

10.2.3

10.2.4

10.3*

10.4.1*

10.4.2*

10.5

10.6

23.1

321

322

- Constitutes a management contract, compensatory plan or arrangement required to be filed as an exhibit to this report.

‘ -~ DESCRIPTION
Form of Amended and Restated

Certificate of Incorporation :

(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to our Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the yéar ended December 31, 2001.)

Amended and Restated Bylaws (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.2 to our amendment to our Quarterly Report on Form.10-
Q/A for the quarter ended September 30, 2004, filed on May 2,
2005)

1996 Equity Compensanon Plan, as amended (1ncorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2002.)

Loan and Security Agreement dated May 10, 2002 by and between
Health Grades, Inc., Healthcare Ratings, Inc., ProviderWeb.net,
Inc., and Silicon Valley Bank (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.1 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
June 30, 2002. .

Loan Modification Agreement dated March 11, 2003 by and
between Health Grades, Inc. and Silicon Valley Bank (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.2.2 to our Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2002.)

Loan Modification Agreement dated February 20, 2004 by and
between Health Grades, Inc. and Silicon Valley Bank (incorporated

_ by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q

for the quarter ended March 31, 2004)

Loan "Modification Agreement dated February 22, 2005 by and
between Health Grades, Inc.. and Silicon Valley Bank.
(incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.2.4 to our Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2005)

Employment Agreement dated as of April 1, 1996 by and
between Specialty Care Network, Inc. and Kerry R.
Hicks (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 103 to

our Registration Statement on Form S-1

(File No. 333-17627))

Employment Agreement between Specialty

Care Network, Inc. and David Hicks, dated March 1,

1996 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to

our Registration Statement of Form S-1(File No. 333-17627))

Amendment to Employment Agreement between Specialty
Care Network, Inc. and David Hicks, dated December 2,
1997. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8.1 to

our Annual Report on Form '10-K for the

fiscal year ended December 31, 1997)

Building Lease between GR Development One, LLC, Landlord and
Health Grades, Inc. Tenant. (incorporated by reference to exhibit
10.5 to our Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005)
Directors Compensation

Consent of Grant Thornton LLP

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 15d-
14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act.

Certification of the Chief Financial. Officer pursuant to Rule 15d-
14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act.

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 15d:
14(b) under the Securities Exchange Act.

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 15d-
14(b) under the Securities Exchange Act.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the under51gned thereunto duly authonzed

HEALTH GRADES INC

Date: March 31, 2006 ‘ ‘, fs/_Kerry R. Hicks
L ‘ i Kerry R. Hicks
‘ Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of: 1934 this report has been signed below by the followmg persons
on behalf of the Registrant and"in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

NAME . TITLE DATE
/s/ Kerry R. Hicks Chief Executive Officer March 31, 2006
Kerry R, Hicks ; {Principal Executive Officer)
/s/ Allen Dodge \ Chief  Financial  Officer "and March 31, 2006
Allen Dodge . Treasurer (Principal Financial and

! .. Accounting Officer)

/s/ Peter H. Cheesbrough Director P March 31, 2006
Peter H. Cheesbrough ‘

/s/ Leslie S. Matthews, M.D. _ Director March 31 , 2006
Leslie S. Matthews, M‘D: ' s

/s/_1D. Kleinke Director |, March 31 , 2006
1.D. Kleinke
{s/_John Quattrone Director ! March 31 , 2006

John Quattrone
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Health Grades, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Schedule II -- Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

BALANCE AT CHARCED TO CHARGEDTO . BALANCE AT

BEGINNING COSTS AND OTHER l END OF
DESCRIPTION OF PERIOD EXPENSES ACCOUNTS DEDUCTIONS PERIOD
Year ended December 31, 20035 $ 15236 8 20,000 $ -- $ (31,029 (1) $ 4,207
Allowance for doubtful : ‘
accounts on trade ‘
receivables
Year ended December 31, 2004
Allowance for doubtful
accounts on trade . : o
receivables $ 11,667 $ 3,569 $ - $ -- $. - 15236
Year ended December 31, 2003
Allowance for doubtful
accounts on trade -

receivables $ - 8 11,667 $ -- $ -- $ 11,667

(1) Represents actual amounts charged against the allowance for the periods presented.
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